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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | present to you the
audited consolidated final results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Group
recorded turnover and profit attributable to the shareholders of
HK$190,974,000 (2011: HK$104,428,000) and HK$43,717,000
(2011 loss: HK$84,966,000) respectively. The board does not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
March 2012 (2011: Nil).

The profit for the year ended 2012 was mainly due to increase
in gross profit to HK$45,566,000, reversal of impairment loss on
intangible assets of HK$39,733,000, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of HK$1,141,000 net off selling and distribution expenses of
HK$1,079,000, administrative expenses of HK$18,934,000, change
in fair value of convertible loan notes of HK$12,703,000 and income
tax expenses of HK$11,420,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the financial year, it was challenging for both the world and
China in the turmoil global economic situation. China maintains
resilience in the midst of a difficult external environment and its GDP
was forecast to be over 8% by the United Nation and International
Monetary Fund for 2012. The Group continues to focus and develop
resources business and has been benefited from the China economy
in this financial year under review.

The Group owns 100% equity interest in a company with mining
interests and selling rights of coal in Xinjiang Autonomous Region,
China. The mining resources wholly-owned by that company include
(i) the mining rights of Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine (“Kaiyuan Mine”)
located in the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the PRC, which
has estimated proved coal reserves and estimated probable coal
reserves of approximately 14.43 million tons and 4.58 million tons
respectively, and (i) the exploration rights of Zexu Open Pit Coal
Mine located in the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, the PRC,
which has the estimated measured coal resources of 56.58 million
tons as at 31 March 2012.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
EREHE (E)

As announced by China’s National Development and Reform
Commission, in the 12th Five Year Plan for coal industry
development (“The Plan”), major focus remains to be development
in western China. The coal reserve in China reached 1,341.2 billion
metric ton at end of 2010. It is some 300 billion metric ton or 29%
increase compared to 2005, where 90% of the increase came
from the western region. The Plan also states the strategy of coal
resource integration and transporting coal from the western region
to the east and the south. Likewise, in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region’s 12th Five Year Plan sets identical strategy on coal resource
integration and transporting coal from the western region to the east
and the south. The coal transportation strategy includes the coal
mine area of Zhun Dong where our Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine
locates. This will bring quantum leap to coal sales upon the second
Lanxin railway is built.

On 21 March 2012, the Company announced the news of the
Management Restructuring Plan (“Restructuring Plan”) being
proposed by the People’s Government of Mulei Kazak Autonomous
County (“Mulei County”) to the Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry
of Changji Prefecture (“Changji Prefecture”). In the Restructuring
Plan, Mulei County proposed an increase of 2.962 km square, a 2.5
times increase in mining area to Kaiyuan Mine. It is subject to further
approval from Changji Prefecture, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region, and Xinjiang Land Department. We are optimistic about the
process and are ready to exploit the coal resource according to new
restructure plan once approval is sought.

We believe the Group will continue to be benefited from China’s
economic development and the Chinese Government’s policy in
developing the Western Region. We will not underestimate the effect
of global economy, competition in the market, coal price fluctuation,
logistic issue and costs. To cope with that, we will exercise our
maximum endeavor to increase efficiency, explore more market, and
control costs.

We will continue to explore resources business investment
opportunity, maintain sustainable growth, and bring value to our
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| wish to thank my fellow directors, management and staff for their
unrelentless efforts for the business development of the Company.
On behalf of the Board, | express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and business
partners for their continuing support of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFWR S Hh

FINANCE REVIEW

Turnover

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$190,974,000
for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$104,428,000). It
represents an increase of approximately HK$86,546,000 or 82.88%
as compared with last year.

The increase was due to increase in average price of coal products
and increase in sales volume as compared with last year.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
increased to approximately HK$45,566,000 (2011: HK$71,000). This
was mainly due to increase in selling price of coal products and the
improvement in coal market environment.

Profit for the year

Profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
approximately HK$43,717,000 (2011: loss approximately
HK$84,966,000). This was mainly due to the improvement in gross
profit and reversal of impairment loss on intangible asset.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segment

The performance of each of the Group’s business segment for the
year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements and are summarised below:

Others
There was no turnover during the year ended 31 March 2012 and
2011 and were disposed during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The operating loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
approximately HK$350,000 compared with last year of approximately
HK$581,000.

Coal Mine Business

The Division contributed a turnover of HK$190,974,000 for year
ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$104,428,000) and represents
82.88% increased as compared with 2011. Coal price was slightly
increased on different types of coal and as a result higher gross profit
was resulted on that segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWR DT (R

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Mine Sales and Production

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group sold 2.54 million
tones to have the total sales income HK$190,974,000. Details of
coal sales in tones are listed in the below tables.

PEER(E)

RN E R E
HE-Z——F=A=+—HBIEE K
EEE H2 540,000 H 5% - AHEE WA A
190,974,00056 7C © AMAET 2 Bt E 1B
BN

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2012 2011

—E——F =%

Coal sales HIREE 2,538,603 1,883,853
toneslhif tonesMmg

Coal Sales (tones) and Percentage of Coal Sales

BEER BH E (WR) MRS E B DLt

Coal Sales Coal Sales in

(tones) %

BIRHE JRIREHE

(W) Bt

Large Coal R 194,854 7.68
Middle Coal B ES 468,314 18.45
Nucleus Coal A% 518,570 20.43
Slack Coal TR 1,300,140 51.21
Mixed Coal TR 56,725 2.23
Total Sales HERS 2,538,603 100.00

Reserves and Resources

The Group owns one mining right and one exploration right in the
Xinjiang, PRC including Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine and Zexu Open
Pit Coal Mine. The coal reserve remaining of Kaiyuan Mine was 16.0
million tones as at 31 March 2012. The explorations of Zexu Mine
was in progress, no development or production activity has taken
place at this stage and the production will be commenced in year
2015. The following tables are the estimated coal reserves for the
Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine and estimated Coal Resources for the
Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine Exploration Right area as at the year 2010
conducted by John T. Boyd Company in June 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEWR DT ()

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) PHEER ()
Reserves and Resources (continued) HEREREE)
Estimated coal reserves for the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine are: FRERER 2 M EBE#EENT
Average
Mineable Seam Marketable Reserves
Thickness (m) (tones-millions)
Total As of 31 March 2010
T BAERIE B AERE
EHEEE(CK) (BEN)
st BE-_Z—ZHF=H=+—H
(Coal/Parting) Proved Probable Total % of Total
Lt
Seam Bench g (BB %RE) BE 8 AT R Et Baok
North of Current Pit
(Potentially Oxidized)
HAEBRLL(BREESL)
B, B, 13.1 - 4.58 4.58 100.00
Mine Plan Area
®IL R Bl E
Bs B, 10.8 3.57 - 3.57 25.00
B, B, 19.6 10.86 - 10.86 75.00
14.43 - 14.43 100.00
Total
st
Bs B, 10.8 3.57 - 3.57 19.00
B2 B, 17.7 10.86 4.58 15.44 81.00
14.43 4.58 19.01 100.00
Approximately 75% of the total reserves are classified as Proved. BIFERT75%E| D RBELER ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWR DT ()

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reserves and Resources (continued)

Estimates of Coal Resources for the Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine
Exploration Rights area total 119.38 Mt, as summarised below:

2 RENE)

HERER(E)
BRBRRRBROFRBE L GHERERA
#£119,380,000Wf - #faian T :

Marketable Resources
(tones-millions)

Average AEER(EEM)

Mineable Seam % of
Thickness (m) Measured Indicated Total Resources
A B ERIR B HEIR
Seam HE THEECK) A i #ct BoL
Br B, 8.5 10.23 10.46 20.69 17
Bs Bs 3.9 2.77 3.98 6.75 6
Bs Bs 6.3 5.80 10.42 16.22 14
B.! BA 1.8 0.29 0.01 0.30 1
Ba B, 6.1 6.85 10.21 17.06 14
Bs Bs; 6.3 8.06 8.03 16.09 13
B. B, 21.1 22.58 19.69 42.27 85
Total 45 56.58 62.80 119.38 100

Costs of Sales SHE AN

The cost of sales for the year was HK$145,408,000 (2011:
HK$104,357,000). The cost mainly comprise machine rental cost,
direct labor cost, cost for explosive works, amortisation of mining
right, etc. The increase in cost of sales during the year was mainly
due to increase in machine rental cost due to increase in production
during the year.

Geographic segments

Hong Kong and PRC (other than Hong Kong) were the major
geographical segments of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012. Ratio analysis by geographical segments for the Group’s
turnover for the year ended 31 March 2012 is as follows:

FRHER A 145,408,000 L (— T ——
F 1 104,357,000/ 7T ) ° BAE Z B IEHM
HERA - EESEKA « BIRTEMA -
RS - FAHERALAEEAR
FNEEREIN - BEMWEERAEF -

= 4R
BEZZT——F=A=+—HILFE  BF
LAB(TBEEL) RASEZ T BESD
Ho-AEREBZE_T——_F=A=+—HI
FEZERBARBWE D BRIR L H] 540
T

PRC
Hong Kong (other than Hong Kong)
£58 RE(FEEES)
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-=F —E——fF —E-=F =%
% % % %
Segment turnover to DA
total turnover IEREXR - - 100.00 100.00
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEBEFWE DT (E)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2012, the Group had:

° net current assets of approximately HK$272,924,000 (2011:
approximately HK$235,054,000).

° bank balances and cash of approximately HK$257,246,000
(2011: approximately HK$225,857,000) which were the major
components of the Group’s current assets of approximately
HK$300,783,000 (2011: approximately HK$267,242,000).

° current liabilities of approximately HK$27,859,000 (2011:
approximately HK$32,188,000) which were mainly composed
of trade and other payables of HK$26,743,000 (2011:
HK$31,615,000).

° non-current liabilities of approximately HK$248,958,000
(2011: approximately HK$227,128,000) which were mainly
composed of deferred tax liability of HK33,118,000 (2011:
HK$24,069,000) and the extended convertible loan notes
designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss approximately HK$213,889,000 (2011: HK$201,186,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio was Nil (2011: 6%). The computation is
based on total debt (trade and other payables, amount due to an
intermediate holding company and convertible loan notes designed
at fair value through profit and loss) less cash and cash equivalents
divided by total equity. As cash and cash equivalents exceed the
total debt for the year ended 31 March 2012, therefore gearing ratio is
nil.

Charges on Group’s Assets

As at the financial year ended 31 March 2012, none of trade
receivables was pledged to secure the borrowing (2011: Nil), no
leasehold land and buildings or investment properties of the Group
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (2011: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWR DT (R

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2012, there was no significant
investments and material acquisitions.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2012, there was no discontinued
operation in the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and incurs costs in RMB
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk based on fluctuations between the Hong Kong dollars and the
RMB arising from its core operation in the PRC. In order to limit this
foreign currency risk exposure, the Group maintained cash balance
that approximate three to four months’ of operating cash flows.

TREASURY POLICIES
The Group generally finances its operation with internal generated
resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2011: Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had 117 employees (2011: 115)
spreading among Hong Kong and the PRC. Industrial relationship
has been well maintained. The Group has adopted an extensive
training policy for its employees. It has also sponsored senior
executives for higher education programs. The Group has adopted a
share option scheme whereby certain employees of the Group may
be granted options to acquire shares of the Company.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

EEREREARWE

REBEE-T——F=-A=t—HULFE A
BEERENEAMNE -

RIERER
RBE-_Z——F=A=+—HILFE " &
SERER R R

4B L B

AEEZWRmTEAARBHE - MAXA
AARBEMBITAE - AEBERHERPE
ZRRLDEBEEZ BT ARSEKE Z
SMNERR o BIRBIZINERE - AEERH
mEEN—ENEARERSRECRE

+
I%l:l 7R °©

EFRE
AEE-REBANBELEEREHEES
%0

HAREE
R-F-——F=ZA=+—8 AEELEE
A RBE(ZT——F : &) -

==

R_E——F=A=+—H A£BEEGE
B1178(ZZF——%F : 116%) * BHEE
KA - AEEHEES —BHRFRITED
B - AEBEFRB—EXBEZEEFIIK
K UTEPSRITHABEESSHER
12 - REEERMBIERT S - Btk - A&
EETEEUERBRENREARRRRK

{/\ ®

11



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEAEREEARMEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lo Fong Hung, aged 57, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Ms. Lo is also the
Chairperson and Managing Director of the Company and is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lo also serves
for several non-listed companies, namely as the chairperson of China
International Fund Limited and as the vice chairperson of China
Sonangol International Holding Limited, China Sonangol International
Limited and Endiama China International Holding Limited and as
director of Sonangol Sinopec International Limited and New Bright
International Development Limited. Since 2004, Ms. Lo started
exploring and developing energy resources and industrial investment
in world-wide. Ms. Lo owns 30% shareholding interests in New
Bright International Development Limited, which currently holds
70% shareholding interests in China Sonangol International Limited.
China Sonangol International Limited is the holding company of
Ascent Goal Investments Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Lo is the wife of Mr. Wang Xiangfei.

Mr. Wang Xiangfei, aged 60, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Wang is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Renmin
University of China with a bachelor degree in economics in 1982.
Mr. Wang is now a Senior Accountant. Mr. Wang serves for several
non-listed companies, namely as the vice chief financial officer of
Sonangol Sinopec International Limited, as the financial advisor of
China Sonangol International Holding Limited and as the external
supervisor of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank. Mr. Wang is also an
independent non-executive director of SEEC Media Group Limited (a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)), New Capital International Investment Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange), China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and Shandong Chenming Paper
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange and the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

In addition, Mr. Wang was the independent non-executive director
of Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
from the April of 2002 to the April of 2008 and Chongging Iron &
Steel Company Limited from the July of 2002 to the June of 2009,
companies listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Previously, Mr. Wang had also served as an executive
director and CEO of China Everbright International Limited, an
executive director of China Everbright Limited and China Everbright
Technology Limited (now known as China Haidian Holdings Limited),
a director & assistant general manager of China Everbright Holdings
Company Limited. Mr. Wang is the husband of Ms. Lo Fong Hung.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

ESReSHEEABBEA)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Kwan Man Fai, aged 43, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Kwan is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in laws and
a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Kwan also holds a master
degree in laws from The London School of Economics and Social
Sciences, the University of London and a master degree in the PRC
law from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan is also now
a partner of Messrs. Anthony Siu & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kwan has over ten years of experience in corporate finance and
banking work, including assisting various companies in their listing
on the Main Board and Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, aged 44, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr.
Lam graduated from the University of Southampton, England with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Statistics. Mr. Lam is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director and Head of Corporate
Finance of an investment bank and has around 18 years experience
in investment banking as well as around 4 years experience in
accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam is also the independent non-
executive director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited, China Fortune
Financial Group Limited, Pearl Oriental Oil Limited and King Stone
Energy Group Limited, companies listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”); and
Trasy Gold Ex Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.

In addition, Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive director
of Applied Development Holdings Limited from 1 October 2005 to
12 December 2011, Value Convergence Holdings Limited from 4
January 2010 to 24 May 2012, China Oriental Culture Group Limited
from 29 January 2008 to 5 October 2010, companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and Hao Wen Holdings Limited
from 17 November 2010 to 16 May 2011, China Railway Logistics
Limited from 22 December 2008 to 27 April 2012 and Finet Group
Limited from 5 August 2009 to 24 January 2011, companies listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

EEREREEASHER)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, aged 46, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008.
Mr. Wong is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA)
and holds a certificate in financial management (CFM). Mr. Wong
holds a bachelor degree in chemical engineering and a master
degree in economics. Mr. Wong is an executive director and deputy
chairman of Raymond Industrial Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director
of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was an independent
non-executive director of Fulbond Holdings Limited (now known as
China New Energy Power Group Limited) from 11 December 2006
to 5 August 2009 and BEP International Holdings Limited from 9
October 2007 to 5 June 2009, both companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was an independent non-
executive director of Era Holdings Global Limited (now known as
ERA Mining Machinery Limited) from 17 August 2007 to 25 February
2008, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey, aged 43, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr.
Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in laws and a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Chan also
holds master degrees in laws from the City University of Hong Kong
and from the People’s University of China. Mr. Chan is currently a
partner of Messrs. David Y.Y. Fung & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in civil and commercial crime
litigation and also handles various transactions for corporate clients
and banks in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hung Che Wan, aged 50, is the company secretary of the
Company appointed on 14 March 2011. Ms. Hung graduated from
the University of Stirling Scotland with bachelor degree in accounting.
Ms. Hung is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 20 years of commercial experience in
business management and administration.

14

BAFHITESE (&)

BEXELE  46m R_ZEZENF=A
T RAEZEAARRZEILIERITE
FoBAAEREHANESITMARCPAE
8« TMERSAICMA) - WHEIKE
HEICFM)EE - EXERE(ETREL
B REERLTEA c B AEBHAR
SEHAR AR (BT ERETATFR
BEBRRABZHITESREERE - ZL4E
MR RAER ETARBRERZERER
RAZBUFPTES - BEEETR =TT
NE+ZRT—BE_ZEThFN\ARBH
IR R FIEAR B R A Rl GRIEH BIET 8L IR ED
NEBBERARKER=_ZZTLF+AN
BE-ZTNF A RABBEREEEZHE
?kﬁ@@?ﬁ&ﬁ¢#ﬂm§$ 2
RNARBRAER ETAR] - BEEBR
—EE+FNATERETEZENF A
—+H HEMERB R AT AIFER EARFR
B ERAR AR CGABEREBREERE
HEBR AR EEBILIENTES -

REEELE 4B R_TZTNF=A
“+RARERERARRBUIFNITES -
W%ii%#%%ﬁ%'%ﬁ%%i%ﬁ&

BEXEE - REETHATERHALE
&¢IAEK§Z%&@$%@°@%$E
REBRMBBIIBITHEMITZIAEBA -
RAEERRENBELFEFDOEREL
B NRBEERAAEPMRITRERER
5 o

BREEAR
HZELL 505 R-ZT——F=A+M
FREZEIR/ARBZRAME - AZLEX
RERBETEEAS - BREASFELEM -
AL L RBBEHNASEREER - UNE
BERRTRIERERE - THFRARER

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRS

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Company has applied the principles
of the Code Provisions under the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2012 (“the year
under review”), save for the deviations from Code provision A.1.1
and A.2.1 as disclosed below.

THE BOARD

Roles and responsibilities

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and shareholders of the Company as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.

Board composition

All directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise
so as to give a balance of skills, knowledge and experience required
for the running of an effective Board. The Board currently comprises
three Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The brief biographical details of the Directors and
relationship among them are set out in the section headed “Biography
of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERRE ()

THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings

During the year under review, the Board held two regular board
meetings which less than the minimum number of regular board
meeting required under Code provision A.1.1. For the sake of
flexibility, the Board held meeting whenever necessary. In addition to
this two board meetings, senior management of the Group provided
to Directors the information on the activities and developments in the
business of the Group from time to time and, when required, ad hoc
board meetings will be held. The attendance records of individual
Directors are as follows:

EEE(#®)

EFegE

REBEFEER  EFSRRTMATHES
EE% 0 REPRTRMRSEARATR
EZREEREFEERRN  -BEFENHA
FEFRITERAER IR - FRILMIX
Exggl AEEZRREEABTE
RAKEXRKRAETRHEA@ED NER L
Bf - BERBRTHIEFTEEE @5
EFZHFECENT

Number of

Name of Directors meetings attended EEHE HESBIH
Executive Directors: BITES
Lo Fong Hung FEHA

(Chairperson and Managing Director) 2 (EERESREE) 2
Wang Xiangfei 2 F AR 2
Kwan Man Fai 2 e 2
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYEHITES :
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 2 =X 2
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 2 MK B 2
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 2 PR R e 2

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director or Committee Members.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Board. In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, at each
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. A Nomination Committee was set up on 27
March 2012 to take up the functions of assessing the adequacy of
the Board composition and the nomination of Directors from 2012
onwards.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
ERERERE (H)

THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Code provision A.4.1 specifies that Non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The three independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
were appointed on 25 March 2008 and have renewed their service
agreements for an extension of 3 years commencing on 25 March
2011. However, they are still subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors’ and Officers’ liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors and Officers liabilities has
been provided to cover potential legal actions against Directors and
Officers.

Training and Support for Directors

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. The
Group provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Company will arrange the
relevant training courses to the Directors at the Company’s expense
and the Board will monitor the Directors’ training and development.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its directors. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2012.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any officer
with CEO title. Ms. Lo Fong Hung, the Chairperson and Managing
Director of the Company, also carried out the responsibility of
CEO during such period. In view of the size of operation of the
Group, the Board considered that this structure is more suitable
for the Company as it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERRE ()

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their own
terms of reference. The views of different committees and their
recommendation not only ensure proper control of the Group but
also the continual achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The Board conducts
regular review of the structure and composition of the committees
with particular attention to the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was set up in March 1999 with specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which was available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company have included the duties which are set out in the Code
provision C.3.3 of the Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
amended on 27 March 2012 in order to comply with the amendment
of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong Man Hin,
Raymond, Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey.

A total of three meetings were held during the year under review and
the individual attendance of members are as follows:

EEXZET
EEgCI=—BRESUEBARAER
ZEERENBORTEEERE - IEZ
BEVANESAZHERE - TRZES
PRtz BR R EHE TMER RN EEETT
HEZER  BAREAKERERS LD
RAAZERELEER - E5F MR
NREECRBRKEHEA - LEERES
KB 2 IRE ~ A N AR

\
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BZE
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FEEEMERE BRLZE @ BEHE
(AT REE P R AR R BRI ER) BiEFRIZ
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EF 57
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Number of
Name of members meetings attended KEKE HESZENE
Lam Ka Wai, Graham (Chairman) 3 MR EE(EF) 3
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 3 mXRRLE 3
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 2 e 22 ST A 2

The Audit Committee reviewed the interim and final consolidated
financial statements, including the Group’s adopted accounting
principles and practices, internal controls, and financial reporting
matters in conjunction with the external auditors. The Audit
Committee endorsed the accounting treatment adopted by the
Company and had the best of its ability assured itself that the
disclosure of the financial information in this report complies with
the applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
ERERERE (H)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was set up in July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee which was available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company have included the duties which
are set out in the Code provision B.1.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee was amended on 27 March 2012 in order
to comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, in order to comply with the revised
Code which was with effect from 1 April 2012, Mr. Kwan Man Fai
(Executive Director of the Company) ceased to be the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee with effect from 27 March 2012 but
remain as a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr Wong
Man Hin Raymond (Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company) has been appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 27 March 2012. Mr. Lam Ka Wai,
Graham and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey (Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company) were the members of the Remuneration
Committee.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for determination,
as authorised by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
having regard to the operating results of the Company, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

During the year under review, one meeting was held and the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the existing remuneration
package of the Board and the senior management of the Company.
The individual attendance of members are as follows:
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Name of members meetings attended REHS HEEBERE
Wong Man Hin, Raymond (Chairman) BEXBRER) (BT —=F

(appointed as Chairman with effect from A+t HRBEZEA

27 March 2012) 1 *E) 1
Kwan Man Fai (ceased to be Chairman with AYE(E—E——F=H

effect from 27 March 2012) 1 Zt+tAETEEREERE) 1
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 1 MK 1
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 1 PR R e 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERRE ()

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was set up in March 2012 with specific
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee which was available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company have included the duties which are
set out in the Code provision A.5.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary.

The Nomination Committee, will take into consideration a candidate’s
qualification, experience, expertise and knowledge, the requirements
applicable to the Company and the structure and composition of
the Board, identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence and care
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before making
recommendations to the Board for their final appointment. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises Chairperson of the
Company, Ms. Lo Fong Hung as the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee, Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Kwan Man Fai
and three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
namely, Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham
and Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey as the members of the Nomination
Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment relating to annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements. As at 31 March 2012, the Directors of the Company
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern basis. The statement
of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on Page 29 of this report.

20

EEZE2(H)

REZEE
REZEEN T ——F=AK ' W¥iIH
FTESHBERE - REEE S RERE
(ATRBERZ P e N A RIAEUE & B BRI Z
SRR EASIGMEZBE  UNFE
RHEHEEEAT -

REZBENAEFTENEFTIHRRERMEN
HERR - BERIREAZERE &8 F
REHE  ARRZERREANESTEZ
RERAK - FEHS - BHRREAES
BERAEIEFENEZREA - BEBER
EeRRMARBEFER AL TEERS
ZEQLIR  MARAMITESEERE
RARB=2WIIFFHTEFTHEXRELE
MERESEERRIBELR LR RIREEEEX

B o

TEER
ARBBNIRNERBREZLEER  ME
SRRARRITETRAMREZERER

ESRMBRRARZEE

EERR BEZBREARFE R IR
& RESFERAMH R EMARRET 2 Efib
THIEE  EREEREZ REURBEEATE
REBTHEBEZER  REFS  BMEE
Bz - RZE—Z—ZF=A=+—H ' &
N AE B AR A BE Al g3 AR RliR
FFEF BB S Vst BN EARRR 25
BN Z (T EATREEEZE - AR RSN
BB EER AP RR BREE
FrE& i 2 B AR A AR S 5520 8 2 I8 1% 2K
EERE o

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
ERERERE (H)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that a sound and effective
internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group
has adopted internal control procedures and policies to safeguard
the assets, to ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and
to carry out a reliable financial reporting and to guarantee compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has engaged SHINEWING
Risk Services Limited to conducts compliance and operation reviews
on the Group and will report its findings to the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2012, Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited (31 March 2011: SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited), the auditor
of the Company, the fee paid or payable to the auditor and its
affiliates provided to the Group as follows:

R EREE 1
EESARERNASEARRERIZE2AN
ZNEBESIRHIE - AKE B RN IR IETR
FFREBERAREEE - MRZERTFET
BRFHASEZMBRE  WRENAHEH
EGI R o

REBFER - AEEEEREXT BER
BEARARHAREETER L EEN
WKHEERAEZZEGER

A B 56 A
BE-T——F=A=1+—BLFE 52
AR BET B B (BB ) Rt M B HATE
BRAR(ZE——F=A=+—8 : X+
M(ER)BAMEBHERAF) - BAR
R EIR G2 RES O 1T SR TR B R LB
ATZBABMT :

2012 2011

=F-=F —F——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Audit services EZRTE 590 740
Non-audit and taxation services IEEAZ R KBRS 82 95
Total 5t 672 835

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATIONS

A Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted on 27 March
2012 to ensure that Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company. The policy was available on the Company’s website. The
Company has established various channels of communications with
its shareholders such as publication of interim and annual reports,
press release and announcement of the latest development of the
Company in a timely manner. The annual general meeting provides
an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
External auditor is also available at the annual general meeting to
address shareholders’ queries. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERS

The directors of the Company present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
mining and sales of coal.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

By a special resolution passed on 19 September 2011, the name of
the Company was changed from “International Resources Enterprise
Limited” to “Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited” and the
Company adopted the Chinese name ‘& RE £ AR AR as
Chinese secondary name of the Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 166. The
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on pages
167 to 168 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in note 25(b) and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
ExgRE (M)

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

Details of the convertible loan notes issued by the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, there were no
connected transactions from any connected persons.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 25(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statements of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2012, the Company had no retained profits available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus of
HK$128,013,000 may be distributed under certain circumstances. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$191,534,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 46% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 11%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 77%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to 34%.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
ExgRE (M)

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Lo Fong Hung (Chairperson and Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Kwan Man Fai

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Man Hin, Raymond

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Kwan Man Fai and Mr. Wong Man Hin Raymond will retire by rotation
and be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 12 and 14 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director of the Company had a significant beneficial interest,
either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party at any time during the year ended 31 March 2012.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
ExgRE (M)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at

31 March 2012, the interests of the directors and chief

executives of the Company in the shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers were as follows:

Long

position

Interests in an associated corporation of the Company

Name of associated

BEERFETHRAERKRMKIER
IR 17 2 R
RZE——F=ZA=+—08 ' ARREEK
FETHABRARRISEREEZE(Ex
REHFEEBEKRA([EFHFRBEEN])E
XVER) Z Bfnh - B AR RIIRIERE H X
B KBS 35216 AR AL G AT B L it 2 4
i SRR E MBI AERETRSFRSZ
EFAIESITAE AR B KB FT 2 i
T

jiir

= 5 Bl

e
AN El PR I - 5

Approximate

percentage
of the issued

Number of
shares

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest interested share capital
BEERZEZ HEBITRAE
EEnA HBEE AR ERME RHEHE HBHOEIL
Ms. Lo Fong Hung (Note 1) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%
BRI (MIFE) Development Limited corporation
BB EERAR AR  REHLEE R
Mr. Wang Xiangfei (Note 2) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%

FAmELE (MiEE2)

L

Notes:

Development Limited
EEBRERBR AR

denotes as long position

Ms. Lo Fong Hung (“Ms. Lo”) is interested in 3,000 shares in New Bright
International Development Limited (“New Bright”), representing 30%
of the issued share capital of New Bright, which currently owns 70%
shareholding interests in China Sonangol International Limited (“China
Sonangol”). China Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal
Investments Limited (“Ascent Goal”), the controlling shareholder of the
Company. The shareholding interests of Ascent Goal is set out in the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders” of this report.

Mr. Wang Xiangfei is the husband of Ms. Lo and is deemed to be
interested in 3,000 shares of New Bright under the SFO.

Ms. Lo, an executive director of the Company, owns 30% of the issued
share capital of New Bright which in turn is interested in 70% of China
Sonangol. China Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal.
Thus, Ms. Lo has an attributable interest in 569,616,589 shares of the
Company and a HK$200,000,000 convertible bond giving rise to an
interest in 1,000,000,000 underlying shares of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
ExgRE (M)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of the relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company

ESREROIES 2ER

Brir e WIS MmRMESAMTIREE N - RFR
ERRE - £2F  FESEZRBH TN
AT F R BERERE BB AL RFR
D RMEZFMER 2 F - TMEITE TR E
RN ¢ AN B S E AP B A A AT 32
TR - BEES A ENESTAEME
ANBEREZ L EHER -

B REST
RAREIEFETE 2 FBH NG AT BRE
M5E34 ©

FERR

R-ZF-—"F=ZA=+—8  ARFEREE
Z RHIERDIEIB6HAMFEE ERRAM
B BREXAREERE TEERERT
KA B 2tz THBRREMEARRIR
FNARPERITRA 2 BRI

RAR B SBARER D 242

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Total number of share capital
Number of shares and of the
Number of underlying underlying Company
Name of Shareholders Notes  Nature of interest shares held shares held shares held (Note 6)
RN
BRITRA
PR FERER  BOESL
REEE Mz  EEME PR EE RAEE  HEROEH (Fit=E6)
Ascent Goal 1,4 Beneficial owner 569,616,689  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
B2 ERBEBA
China Sonangol 2,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
2 ER corporation
REHEE 2 R
New Bright 2,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,589  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
gl corporation
REHEE e
26 Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
ExgRE (M)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

FERR(E)

Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company  RAZRAFIRH ARG 2 178 (&)
(continued)
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Total number of  share capital
Number of shares and of the
Number of underlying underlying Company
Name of Shareholders Notes  Nature of interest shares held shares held shares held (Note 6)
EARAT
ERITRA
FristaE skt BHEH
REER M ERNE FiERaEE BRBEE HERGEY (FfEE6)
Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica 3,4 Interests of controlled 569,616,689  1,000,000,000  1,569,616,589 205.08%
RSt corporation
AR n
Africa Israel Investments Ltd B Beneficial owner 45,000,000 - 45,000,000 5.88%
EREAA
Mr. Lev Leviev 5 Beneficial owner 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.13%
Lev LevieviE & ERnEEA
5 Interests of controlled 74,000,000 - 74,000,000 9.67%
corporation
R ER  En
Notes: BfiaE :
1. Ascent Goal was directly interested in 569,616,589 shares and a further 1. BIZA 569,616,589 % RS HiE s -
1,000,000,000 underlying shares which may be fully allotted and issued A A AT A AR (B iR B R (B 0.207% T E R I 7]
if the convertible bond are converted at the conversion price of HK$0.20. 8% 2 MM Ad 3% & 8 17 2 58 1 1,000,000,000 A%
These 1,569,616,589 shares were held by Ascent Goal directly as TR 1D B B © %1,569,616,589
beneficial owner. It includes (i) interests in 569,616,589 shares and (i) the BRIROBESESERES AEERE 2
convertible bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000 underlying FE() 7R 569,616,589 M fs 10 2 #E s ¢ K ()35 K
shares. 1,000,000,000/% 1B BAAR (D #E % 2 ATIRAR E S ©
2. Since Ascent Goal is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Sonangol 2. HAREEARTBRZ2ENBAR - M<H
which is beneficially owned as to 70% by New Bright, the interests of BERRABESEG70%  MBEESRGE
Ascent Goal is deemed to be the interests of China Sonangol and in turn GH - B2 SRR AR ER 2 - #
the interests of New Bright under the SFO. MR R EIE 2 #Eam o
3. Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica is deemed to have interests in the 3. IS5 2z R A B 70% e M WAR AR
Shares and underlying shares through her 70% interest in New Bright. B4 RABRARR (D < #Eas o
4.  The 569,616,589 shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares under the 4. % 569,616,589 R ik 17 R AT 2 iR & %5 H T

convertible bond represent 74.42% and 130.66% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company respectively, thus the total of 569,616,589
shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares represents 205.08% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company. The conversion
rights attaching to the convertible bond will not be exercised and the
Company will not issue the conversion shares if, immediately following
the conversion, the Company would be unable to meet the public float
requirement under the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
ExgRE (M)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

5. For the shares held by Mr. Lev Leviev, of these shares, 45,000,000
shares were held by Africa Israel Investments Ltd, a company
controlled by Mr. Lev Leviev through his 74.89% interests in Africa
Israel Investments Ltd; 29,000,000 shares were held by Memorand
Management (1998) Ltd, a company controlled by Mr. Lev Leviev
through his 99% interests in Memorand Ltd.; and 1,000,000 shares were
held by Mr. Lev Leviev directly.

6. The approximate percentage of shareholdings is based on 765,373,584
shares as at 31 March 2012, not the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company upon full conversion of the convertible bond.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
No director of the Company had interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the
year and up to the date of this report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors
of the Company, over 25% of the issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the
Company in 2011 upon the retirement of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairperson and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVRE S

A\ Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS INTERNATIONAL RESOURCES ENTERPRISE
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 31 to 166 which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
By HBEn#HE ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2011 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 20 June
2011.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Betty P.C. Tse

Practising Certificate Number PO3024

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeZElaR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZ —ZT——&E=A=+—H | FE

2012 2011
—E-—fF %
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
PEE FTET FET
(restated)
(FeE7)
Turnover K 7 190,974 104,428
Cost of sales SHE KA (145,408) (104,357)
Gross profit E7 45,566 71
Other revenue HAbas 1,413 3,088
Impairment loss on goodwil B2 REER 17 = (15,065)
Reversal of/(impairment loss) on ER B ERL
intangible assets CRIEERE) 16 39,733 (41,595)
Gain on deregistration of BEH — R P B A A R AR
a subsidiary 2 Wies 31 - 408
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz s 30 1,141 -
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KD HE R (1,079) (1,165)
Administrative expenses 1THE R (18,934) (20,407)
Change in fair value of RREEREZ
convertible loan notes NEEEE) 26 (12,703) (1,186)
Finance costs [ELEENDEN 9 = (19,845)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBALRF](E18) 55,137 (95,696)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i (%) 5 10 (11,420) 10,730
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmAM, (E8) 11 43,7117 (84,966)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 EUA
Exchange difference on translation of BETREEH
functional currency to presentation BEIEB
currency fEH =5 6,568 6,728
Reclassification adjustment for RHERBARZ
exchange difference relating to bE X ZRRE R
disposal of subsidiaries DI 1,509 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, fFRE#ZEWA
net of tax HERTIE 8,077 6,728
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEmBA
for the year (E18) 188 51,794 (78,238)

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
FeazmEkER ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012 B EZ - ——F=F=+—HILFE

. 2011
—— —F——F
HK$'000
FAET
(restated)
(FeE7)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: AT AT EIEFREF,
(B8) :
— Owners of the Company B VNEIL 2PN (84,109)
— Non-controlling interests — FEPEARAE RS (861)
(84,966)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ATRALEEZEEBA
attributable to: (B18) 4% -
— Owners of the Company . YNGIE 2PN (77,377)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (861)
(78,238)
Earnings/(loss) per share (expressed in SREAEF,(EEB)
Hong Kong cents) (LABILZS1)
- Basic —FK (10.99)
— Diluted —#E (10.99)

The notes on pages 40 to 166 form an integral part of




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBERKAER

As at 31 March 2012 R —ZE——F=HF=+—H

2012 2011
=F-=F —
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M5E FHET FETT
Non-current assets FkREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - RE SRR 15 24,229 26,345
Intangible assets B EE 16 132,471 95,480
Goodwill EES 17 = _
Security deposit REBEZ® 18 2,809 1,930
159,509 123,755
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 38,483 36,701
Trade and other receivables FEWE R K
H b e g zh18 21 5,054 4,684
Cash and cash equivalents R NS EEIER 22 257,246 225,857
300,783 267,242
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables BN ER &
Efth e FRIE 23 26,743 31,615
Amount due to an intermediate JES —E N IR A T]
holding company FIA 24 40 573
Tax payable FETFRIR 1,076 =
27,859 32,188
Net current assets ThEBEEFE 272,924 235,054
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBER 432,433 358,809

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

33



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
HEMBARRRE(E)
Asat 31 March 2012 R =E——%F=H=+—H

2012 2011
=F-=F —
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE FHET FET
Capital and reserves R R s
Share capital R& A 25 76,537 76,537
Reserves G 106,938 55,144
Equity attributable to owners of KARER AEEER
the Company 183,475 131,681
Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Convertible loan notes designated as BEREATEYR
financial liabilities at fair value through WHEEEARE 2
profit or loss EMBE AT BRR
EEZE 26 213,889 201,186
Provision for close down, restoration RAEA - 1B2R
and environmental costs IRIBA AN 27 1,951 1,873
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBRE 28 33,118 24,069
248,958 227,128
432,433 358,809

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 R-ZE——F A -+ HHESFSHERE

June 2012, HEFIEE
On behalf of the board REES=E
Lo Fong Hung Wang Xiangfei
ERA FAR
Director Director
EFE EE

The notes on pages 40 to 166 form an integral part of these financial ~ 5|EA F 405166 B 2 Mt s A 5% = 0 15
statements. x2—Hm e
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Mk T

As at 31 March 2012 R —ZE——F=HF=+—H

2012 2011
—E—C—F =%
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M5E FHET FET
(restated)
(g&=751)
Non-current assets FkREEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB NG 15 651 =
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZIRE 19 = -
651 -
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHI B A mIFkIE 19 153,701 133,959
Other receivables H {th e zkiE 21 102 416
Cash and cash equivalents HE MRS EEEE 22 207,590 184,813
361,393 319,188
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals H e ERIA K
FEETER 23 1,084 1,355
Amount due to an intermediate JE —E s NI AT]
holding company RIE 24 40 S8
1,124 1,928
Net current assets REBEEFRE 360,269 317,260
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAE 360,920 317,260
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital N 25 76,537 76,537
Reserves s 25 70,494 39,537
147,031 116,074
Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Convertible loan notes designated e AERAFESIER
as financial liabilities at fair value WHEBZANRIE 2
through profit or loss TRLEE 2 TR
BEER 26 213,889 201,186
360,920 317,260

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20

June 2012.

On behalf of the board

Lo Fong Hung

B4
Director

EFE

The notes on pages 40 to 166 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012
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RETIE -
RREZ=E

Wang Xiangfei
EAR

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeERgER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZ —ZT——&E=A=+—H | FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALRREAEL
Convertible
loan Exchange Non-
Share  Share notes  Capital Statutory translation  Special Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
R
LS
Rka BRHEE e HARE AERE ENRE RAURE  RMER AR FBRER 0 48
HKS000 HK§000 — HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKSO00 HK$'000  HKBOOD HKS'000 HKS000  HK$000
Tén  ThEr Tén Thr TEn  TEr  TEn Tén TEr  TEn  TEx
(note (note (note (note (note (note
254() Bal)  25q)) 25a()  25a()  25ali)
(Mt (e O O O (i
%al)  25af)  25a)  25ah)  5ay)  25ai)
At 1 Aprl 2010 RZZ-F5MA-A 76,537 191,534 55495 14882 534 (1212 - (161,133 181,307 78004 259401
Loss for the year restated) ~ FAEE(SE7) = = = = = = - [B4105  (84,109) (861) (84,966
Exchange difference on HENEEE A2
tranglation of functional ERIEHEE
currency to presentation (mE3])
currency (restated) - - - - - 6728 - - 6728 - 6728
Total comprenensiveloss ~ FAZESEEE
for the year - - - - - 678 - (84,105 (77,377) (861) (78,238
Addition onacquistionof - FUEHBAT
further interests EaRAE
in subsidlaries - - - - - - 2,143 - 21,143 (17,143)  (50,000)
Appropriation of maintenance  #REREEES AT
and production funds - - - - 645 - - (6,455) - - =
Utilsation of maintenance  £HREEEE 23R
and production funds - - - - (6459 - - 6,455 - - -
Deregistration of a subsidary s — T BA TR - - - - - 518 - - 518 - 58
Release during the year AREEZER RN
upon expiring of REREM
convertiole loan notes - - (65,495) - - - - 55,495 - - =
At31 March 2011 restated) ~ R=F——%
=A=t-R
(&mE3]) 76,537 191,534 - 14882 5364 5974 27143 (189,743) 131,681 - 131681
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
FEEREEBR(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H#EZ —Z——F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTEE AR
Convertible
loan Exchange Non-
Share  Share notes  Capital Statutory translation  Special Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
ik
REZE
Bx RfVEE e EARE tERE ENRE RURE  RMER  AF FEREE 0 AR
HKB000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000
Thr  TEn Thr Thr TEr TEr  TEn Thr TEr TEr  TER
(note (note (note (note (note (note
25.a()) 25af)) 254  25a()  25ah)  25a\i)
(Mt (e (e O O (i
%al)  af)  25a)  25ah)  5ay)  25ai)
At 31 March 2011 RZE—F
(as previously reported) =h=1-H
(WEAMZH) 76537 191,534 - 14882 534 2963 27,143 (186,732 131,681 - 131,681
Prior year adjustments LEEAB (M)

(note 4) - - - - -3 - (3011) - - -
As restated ] 76537 191,534 - 14882 5354 5974 27143 (189,743) 131,681 - 131,681
Proft for the year Emgh = - - - - - - RN AT KN AV - 77
Exchange difference on HENEER A2

translation of functional N2

currency to presentation

currency - - - - - 6,68 = - 6,568 - 6568
Reclassification adjustment G EHBATZ

for exchange difference relating [E ¥ £ &3

to disposal of subsiolaries PERR = - - - - 1509 - - 1509 - 1509
Total other comprehensive ~ FREZERALE

income for the year - - - - - 8,077 - - 8,077 - 8,077
Total comprehensiveincome AR ERALE

for the year - - - - - 807 - 83717 5179 - 51794
Transfer 4 - - - - 108 - - (1,282) - - -
Appropriation of maintenance 4R EEEE 7S

and production funds - - - - 2909 - - (29,029) - - -
Utlisation of maintenance ~ BBREEEE A

and production funds - - - - (2909 - - 29,09 - - -
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F

=f=r=H 76537 191,534 - 14882 6636 14051 27,143 (147,308) 183475 - 183475

FIE N EBA0E166 B 2 M E AR % S M 53
wZ—E7D o

The notes on pages 40 to 166 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &% —

55
=
=

“E=ZA=t—RHIFE

2012 2011
—B—C=fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
(restated)
(FEE5)
Operating activities FE— S
Profit/(loss) before tax BREALRF (EE) 55,137 (95,696)
Adjustments for: BLT5IE B ERAE -
Depreciation of property, YE - RENREZ
plant and equipment e 4,041 2,979
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EH 7,166 6,693
Finance costs BhE AR = 19,845
Impairment loss on goodwill R REER = 15,065
Impairment loss on intangible assets mILEE D RERE - 41,595
Reversal of impairment loss on | EERERE
intangible assets o (89,733) -
Reversal of write down of FEMURER
inventories (17,900) =
Gain on deregistration of Bs— R B A ]
a subsidiary i Weas = (408)
Fair value change in convertible loan EE BiR AT EYER
notes designated at fair value WHEBZRANREZ
through profit and loss BRLE B2 AT
BEERE 2 ATE
%) 12,703 1,186
Loss on disposal of property, HEME MEK
plant and equipment Bt 6 47
Net exchange (gain)/loss ERACC IV
SEEE (558) 3,011
Interest income MEMA (1,117) (418)
Waiver of long outstanding trade HNERHAREER
payables JERRTE R = (809)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz s (1,141) -
Operating cash flow before EEESBEA KR
movements in working capital EHhe 18,604 (6,910)
Decrease in inventories FER A 17,730 26,706
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other ~ FEU & 2 F2 H b B U ak
receivables BOEM),E (350) 6,612
Decrease in trade and other payables EREZRR
Hh & < SR IER (3,035) (5,168)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to JERT—FEFR M ER AT
an intermediate holding company FIECRA), /1 (533) 573
Decrease in amount due to related JERTRAZE R R FRIBR A
companies - (168)
Cash generated from operations REZLBABRE 32,416 21,645
Income tax paid BETSHR (2,254) (107)
Net cash generated from REEBRBRSTFHE
operating activities 30,162 21,538
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

RERSRERE)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 & —E—_—F=A=1+—HItFZE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T—%F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BfaE FEx FET
(restated)
(geE:5)
Investing activities REXEH
Additions of property, plant and REME - BB R&HE
equipment (897) (4,699)
Deregistration of a subsidiary B —REW B A B 31 = )
Interest received BYFIE 1,117 418
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE  BEXR
plant and equipment Bl PdyiE =S¢ = 73
Net cash outflow on disposal of HERBARZ
subsidiaries RB I FEE 30 (79) -
Increase in security deposit IREEREIE M (784) -
Net cash used in investing activities RE%£EFFAREEE (643) (4,211)
Financing activities B X
Acquisition of further interest in IR E AR
subsidiaries FERS 29 - (50,000)
Repayment of amount due to BEEEN—AHEAT
shareholder of a subsidiary A& R I8 - (28,500
Interest paid BEAFE = (255)
Net cash used in financing activities RIS %KM ARLEE = (78,755)
Net increase/(decrease) incashand BRERELSZEEHZ
cash equivalents ®hn, (R ) FE 29,519 (61,428
Cash and cash equivalents E2HER
at beginning of year HE&ZEHER 225,857 286,711
Effect on foreign exchange rate ExEs o8
changes 1,870 574
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBERBE
at end of year, represented by ZEEH U9 A
bank balances and cash BITHEERES 257,246 225,857

The notes on pages 40 to 166 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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FIE R E40E 166 B 2 M sE B 5% & B 53R

RZ—BD °

39



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R4 %5 80 =P

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZ —ZT——&E=A=+—H | FE

40

GENERAL

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s parent company is
Ascent Goal Investments Limited (“Ascent Goal”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and the Group’s ultimate holding company is New Bright
International Development Limited (“New Bright”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. Its ultimate
controlling party is Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”). As the turnover and results are
contributed by the mining and sales of coal business during the
year ended 31 March 2011 while the other segments remain
inactive as a result of strategic shift in the business focus of the
Group, the directors of the Company are of the view that the
functional currency of the Company has been changed from
HK$ to Renminbi (“‘RMB”) from 1 April 2010 onwards. The
presentation currency of the Company and the Group would
remain to be in HK$ for consistent presentation and the use of
investors.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in mining
and sales of coal.

—REHR
MEEREXARAR(TARA DR
BREZMKRLA—HXHREZAR
RAE e ARBBRNETBHE X B
BRAR([BRA]) LW - EFR
R AEBZBRR/NEBER L RF
SEMKRLZBERAFEERERR
REI[ER]) » MAKEZ &HKER
AREAANEBEMAILZBER AR
AR ERBRAR(TAE]) - &
BREAE T RIS IS+ o

ARREMPERLTELEME 2
AR ERZ AR EHPRE -

meamBmRRAET(EIT]) 27 -
HRBE-_Z——F=A=+—H1
FEZEXBNEEHRRFARNH
EXBER > MEMSBABRASE
BEBEL CREBBNEEEY
ARREZRR > ARBMEEED
B-Z-—ZTFNA-HERBTEXR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 S e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

GENERAL (continued)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general
meeting held on 11 March 2011, the name of the Company
was changed from China Sonangol Resources Enterprise
Limited (ZF&RE AR AR to International Resources
Enterprise Limited (BI[E&JRE % BFR A 7)) effective from 16
March 2011.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 19 September 2011, the name
of the Company was further changed from International
Resources Enterprise Limited (B & RELBRAF) to
Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (AR & R E £ AR A
7). The certificate of incorporation on change of name and
the certificate of secondary name have been issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and the name change
took into effect on 4 October 2011.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (“INTs”) (herein collectively referred to as “new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs  Improvements to HKFRSs issued

in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised
in 2009)

Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a Minimum
—Int 14 Funding Requirement

HK(FRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

—RER (&)
BE—BR-_Z—F=A+—H
BITZBREFIAE BB
SR % A 2 A B China Sonangol
Resources Enterprise Limited ( 2 /1 &
REZEBRRAR) 5 A Alnternational
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BREEARAR) B ——F=H
+REAER -

BE—IER-_ZE——FNA+HBEL
TZREFRRE L@RBFRIAE
22 » AN/A Al # International Resources
Enterprise Limited (R & RE %A
[RA 7)) H 5% ANan Nan Resources
Enterprise Limited (BEEREXEER
AR) c BREARGMEERERE
HAEBEHARFMEERE AT
BE BFRNEER_ZT——F+ AN
BARR

RAM RS BB HER
FEA(EEMBREER ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

42

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The amendment to HK(IFRIC) Int 14 have had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements as they were
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.
HK(IFRIC) Int 19 has not yet had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters a relevant transaction
(for example, a debt for equity swap).

The impacts of other development are discussed below:

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed
the identification of related parties and concluded
that the revised definition does not have any material
impact on the Group’s related party disclosures in the
current and previous period. HKAS 24 (as revised in
2009) also introduces modified disclosure requirements
for government-related entities. This does not impact
the Group because no entities within the Group is a
government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. These amendments do not have any
material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurements of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements in the current and previous periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 S e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the owners of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognise the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (jii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognises as gain or loss in profit or loss attributable
to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in associate or
a jointly controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

b)

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to 1
April 2010

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition
were generally recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the recognised amount of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the recognised
amount of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the acquisition,
the excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the minority interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amount of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
c)  Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to

benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated
to a cash-generating unit was acquired in a business
combination during the current period, that unit shall
be tested for impairment before the end of the current
annual period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

d)

48

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any identified impairment loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis,
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Patents and trademarks

Cost incurred on the acquisition of patents and
trademarks are capitalised in the consolidated statement
of financial position and are amortised by equal annual
instalments over the estimated useful life of five years.
Patents and trademarks are not revalued as there is no
active market for these assets.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses and are amortised
on the units of production method utilising only proven
and probable coal reserves in the depletion base.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost of the exploration rights are transferred to
mining rights upon the government’s approval of the
mining license and the commencement of the mining
activities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search
for mineral resources, the determination of technical
feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of
an identified resource.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs
which are directly attributable to:

- research and analysing historical exploration data;

- gathering exploration data through topographical,
geographical and geophysical studies;

- exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling;

= determining and examining the volume and grade
of the resource;

- surveying transportation and infrastructure
requirements; and

- conducting market and finance studies

Expenditure during the initial exploration stage of
a project is charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
evaluation costs, including the costs of acquiring licenses,
are capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets on
a project-by-project basis pending determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project.

When it can be reasonably ascertained that a mining
property is capable of commercial production, exploration
and evaluation costs are transferred to mining rights and
are amortised based on the accounting policy as stated
in “Mining rights” above. If any project is abandoned
during the evaluation stage, the total expenditure thereon
will be written off.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Q) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
building held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any (see

note 3())).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual

value, using the straight-line method.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the

profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest

basis for debt instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including security deposits, trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.

For the Group’s financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency

in interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 90 days, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against profit or
loss. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and
other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FV/TPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that

would otherwise arise;

= the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is

provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract (asset or

liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the ‘change in fair value of
convertible loan notes’ line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 26.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amount due to an intermediate holding
company are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Convertible loan notes

Convertible loan notes contains liability and equity
components

Convertible loan notes issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible loan notes (continued)

Convertible loan notes contains liability and equity
components (continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This
amount is recorded as liability on an amortised cost basis
using the effective interest method until extinguished
upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share capital and share premium. Where
the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible loan notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and are
amortised over the life of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Convertible loan notes (continued)

Convertible loan notes designated as financial liabilities at

FVTPL

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group (including
related embedded derivatives) are designated as financial
liabilities at FVTPL on initial recognition. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the entire convertible loan note
is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

arise.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
h) Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognsied in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those

parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognsied and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit

or loss.

i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

60

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provision for close down, restoration and
environmental costs

One consequence of coal mining is land subsidence
caused by the resettlement of the land at the mining
sites. Depending on the circumstances, the Group
may relocate inhabitants from the mining sites prior
to conducting mining activities or the Group may
compensate the inhabitants for losses or damage from
close down and land subsidence after the sites have
been mined. The Group may also be required to make
payments for restoration, rehabilitation or environmental
protection of the land after the sites have been mined.

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling
and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of
residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas.
Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during
mine development or during the production phase,
based on the net present value of estimated future
costs. The cost is capitalised where it gives rise to future
benefits, whether the rehabilitation activity is expected to
occur over the life of the operation or at the time of close
down. The capitalised cost is amortised over the life of
the operation and the increase in the net present value of
the provision is included in borrowing costs.

Where there is a change in the expected decommissioning
and restoration costs, an adjustment is recorded against
the carrying value of the provision and related assets, and
the effect is then recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a prospective basis over
the remaining life of the operation. Provisions for close
down and restoration costs do not include any additional
obligations which are expected to arise from future
disturbance. The cost estimates are reviewed and revised
at the end of the reporting period to reflect changes in
conditions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
l) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

l) Impairment of assets (continued)
i) Impairment of receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
l) Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- intangible assets
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

l) Impairment of assets (continued)
ii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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3.

66

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
l) Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
The carrying amount of the exploration and
evaluation assets is reviewed annually and
adjusted for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets whenever one of the
following facts and circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list is
not exhaustive):

- The period for which the entity has the right
to explore in the specific area has expired
during the period or will expire in the near
future, and is not expected to be renewed;

- Substantive expenditure incurred on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PR R R P ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

l) Impairment of assets (continued)
iii)  Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets
(continued)

Exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led
to the discovery of commercially viable
quantities of mineral resources and the entity
has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

Sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely
to proceed the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely
to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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3.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

m)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Share-based payment

Share options granted by the Company to directors
and employees of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 i ZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
n)  Share-based payment (continued)

Share options granted by the Company to directors

and employees of the Company (continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is

expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

o) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 4R 2% Bt (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
0)  Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which

the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable

that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 75 4 2 B (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
0) Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits

will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the

related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 4R 2% Bt (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
0)  Income tax (continued)

= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and

settle simultaneously.

p)  Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except

for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign

currency borrowings;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 75 4 2 B (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
p)  Foreign currencies (continued)

= exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks;
and

= exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange translation reserve
(attributing to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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3.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Q)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases,
with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease; and

= land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
q) Leased assets (continued)

i)

ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 3(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 3(l).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
r) Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are carried at their present values.

ii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of

withdrawal.

s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed

in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
f) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;

ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 4R 2% Bt (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &%= —Z

3.

78

—ZHEZA=-t-HALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

1)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
V) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s executive directors for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELFEZRE
During the course of preparing the Group’s financial statements REIRAEEHEZE_ZT——F=HA
for the year ended 31 March 2012, it has come to the attention =t BIFEZTBRERBRES
of the directors of the Company that the prior year financial AANREETEZS  KEBNKKAR
statements of the Group and of the Company contained errors. 2 P FESRRTFERE ©
The following tables are details of the adjustments that have TEREVRENEFMEFREE-F
been made in order to rectify the errors stated in note 4(a) — F=A=F+—HILFEXREBL
and (b) to each of the line items in the consolidated statement AEEWEEK  REEREBR N
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of EHREMERUARERGHHEMRRNE
changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows PR AREIE R 2R E 2 AEFE (R
of the Group and the statement of financial position of the iT4(a) K (b)F7R) °
Company as previously reported for the year ended 31 March
2011.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B RS ER R P ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4,

(continued)
The Group

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2011

REH
REREWER
BEr—FE——F=A=+—HIFE

REELFEZRE(R)

Effect of
prior year
adjustments
2011 in relation to
(as previously exchange 2011
reported) differences (as restated)
—E——F FEERER S
(MBERFT2K) WEoTE (&)
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FHT
(note 4(a))
(PtsE4(a))
Turnover SR 104,428 = 104,428
Cost of sales SHEA (104,357) = (104,357)
Gross profit EF 71 - 71
Other revenue Hb e 3,088 - 3,088
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE (15,065) - (15,065)
Impairment loss on intangible  #EAZ & 2 A
assets E518 (41,595) = (41,595)
Gain on deregistration of a BUE— e B AR
subsidiary 2 Was 408 - 408
Selling and distribution HERDHE A
expenses (1,165) - (1,165)
Administrative expenses 1T E R (17,396) (3,011) (20,407)
Change in fair value of ARREEREL
convertible loan notes NEEE) (1,186) - (1,186)
Finance costs RUE AN (19,845) - (19,845)
Loss before tax R AT E R (92,685) (3,011) (95,696)
Income tax credit FiS B % 10,730 - 10,730
Loss for the year FANEE (81,955) (3,011) (84,966)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELEEIRE(E)
(continued)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income SETHEWERE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued) R E——F = =1 —HIFE
(&)
Effect of
prior year
adjustments
2011 in relation to
(as previously exchange 2011
reported) differences (as restated)
—B——F LEEERES —EF——-F
(MR FIFT28]K) WEIHE (&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET
(note 4(a))
(KtzE4(@)

Other comprehensive income HftZ2EW A

Exchange difference on BMEREERED
translation of functional B ER ERE
currency to presentation
currency 3,717 3,011 6,728

Other comprehensive income  FRE M2 A -
for the year, net of tax HERTHIR 3,717 3,011 6,728

Total comprehensive loss for  FR2EEEAE

the year (78,238) . (78,238)
Loss for the year AR A LR
attributable to: FANEA -
— Owners of the Company —RNABEAR A (81,094) (3,011) (84,105)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIERR R R (861) = 861)
(81,955) (8,011) (84,966)

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 =



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELEEIRE(E)
(continued)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income HETEWRERE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued) B F——F=HA=+—HIFEZ
(&)
Effect of
prior year
adjustments
2011 in relation to
(as previously exchange 2011
reported) differences (as restated)
—EB——F LFEEREHR —F——-F
(MR FIFT28]K) WEIHE (&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET
(note 4(a))
(BtzE4(@)
Total comprehensive loss IWTNALTEEEZE
attributable to: E5i84B s
— Owners of the Company —ARRREAA (77,377) = (77,377)
— Non-controlling interests — IR A (861) - (861)
(78,238) - (78,238)

Loss per share (expressed in &R EE (LA

Hong Kong cents) £51)
— Basic —HAR (10.60) (0.39) (10.99)
— Diluted —#E (10.60) (0.39) (10.99)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PR R R P ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &= —Z—

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4,

(continued)
The Group (continued)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2011

—FZAZ+—HLFE

AR E ()
HAMEBDE
HE-F——F=A=+—AILFE

REELFEZRE(R)

Effect of
prior year
adjustments
2011 in relation to
(as previously exchange 2011
reported) differences (as restated)
—E——F FEEREHE S
(MR ATFT28]) AETE (F2E51)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET FET
(note 4(a))
(PtsE4(a))
Share capital R 76,537 = 76,537
Share premium A RE 191,534 - 191,534
Capital reserve N 14,882 = 14,882
Statutory reserves JRIE 5,354 = 5,354
Exchange translation reserve & ¥, [ 2,963 3,011 5,974
Special reserve =R 27,143 - 27,143
Accumulated losses RETEE (186,732) (3,011) (189,743)
Total equity attributable to RABHEAR AFEN
owners of the Company AR 131,681 - 131,681
Non-controlling interests IR R R - - -
Total equity B 131,681 = 131,681

MREREXBRAR - F 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B Rk M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—HI|LFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELEEIRE(E)
(continued)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Consolidated statement of cash flows HEESRER
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BEr —F——F=HA=1—HIFEF
Effect of
prior year
adjustments in
2011 relation to
(as previously exchange Total 2011
reported) differences Reclassification ~ adjustments  (as restated)
-5 LFEEREH —2—-f
(NEAH2HR) il 7 ENAE il (RE5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT ThT TAT Thx TAT
(note 4(a)) (note 37)

(Mizt4(a) (Hiz37)

Operating activities ey (92,685) (3,011) - (3,011) (95,696)
Loss before tax BiRIER
Adjustment for: 5t NSIEE fERE -
Depreciation of property, nE  BER
plant and equipment REZITE 2,979 = = - 2,979
Amortisation of intangible BYEEL
assets i 6,693 = - - 6,693
Finance costs BERAK 19,845 - - - 19,845
Impairment loss on goodwil HEZREEE 15,065 - = = 15,065
Impairment loss on intangible BYEEZRE
assets BB 4159 = - - 41,59
Gain on deregistration of a HH-FEHBAR
subsidiary S 2 Mg (408) = = = (408)
Fair value change in BEARATE
convertible loan notes SR E R
designated at fair valug NEEZ A
through profit and loss REEZEL
NTEED 1,186 - - = 1,186
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BRE
plant and equipment & 47 = - - 47
Net exchange loss EREETE - 3,011 - 3,011 3,011
Interest income FIBWMA (418) - - = (418)
Walver of long outstanding RERBAER
trade payables ERER (809) - - - (809)

Operating cash flow before EEELRBAZLE
movements in working capital HERE (6,910) - - - (6,910)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 SR e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ2 —E——F=/F=+—HILtFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELEEIRE(E)
(continued)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued) HERERERGE)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued) ER o E——F = H=F—HIFFE
(&
Effect of
prior year

adjustments in
2011 relation to

(as previously exchange Total 2011
reported) differences Reclassification ~ adjustments  (as restated)
Z8--F LEEENER “E-F
(NEAFMER) REzE ENAE RRAE (&E51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT Thx TAT Thx THT

(note 4(a)) (note 37)

(Mizt4(a) (Bff3£37)

Decrease in inventories HERD 26,706 - - - 26,706
Decrease in trade and other i Ce e
receivables ERD 6,612 - - - 6,612
Decrease in trade and other ST R ER
payables FERD (5,168) - - - (5,168)
Increase in amount due to an BT — MRk
intermediate holdling company ARIFEEN 573 - - - 573
Decrease in amount due to FENEEARTE
related companies > (168) - - - (168)
Cash generated from operations ~ E&XHHERS 21,645 = = = 21,645
Income tax paid BEMER (107) - - - (107)
Net cash generated from RexBmERs
operating activities B 21,538 - - - 21,538

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 =



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELEEIRE(E)
(continued)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued) HERERERGE)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued) AR E——F = H=F—HIFFE
(&
Effect of
prior year

adjustments in
2011 relation to

(as previously exchange Total 2011
reported) differences Reclassification  adjustments  (as restated)
“E8--F LEEENER —8-F
(NEAMER) REzE ENAE RRAE (E51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT Thx TAT Thx TAT

(note 4(a)) (note 37)

(Mizt4(a) (Bff3£37)

Investing activities REEE
Acquisition of further interest in E—AWERB AT
subsidiaries s (50,000) - 50,000 50,000 -
Repayment of amount due to EREN—FNE
shareholder of a subsidiary NARRATE (28,500) - 28,500 28,500 -
Additions of property, plant and NENE  BER
equipment B (4,699) - - - (4,699)
Deregistration of a subsidiary HE-ENEAR
R (S - - - @
Interest received 2liFlE 418 - o . 418
Proceeds on disposal of LENE  BER
property, plant and equipment B 73 - - - 73
Net cash used in investing REXRHARS
activities T (82,711) - 78,500 78,500 (4.211)
Financing activities REEH
Acquisition of further interest in E—HREHEAR
subsidiaries 3 = - (50,000 (50,000) (50,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
MRS R R M aE (48)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELEEIRE(E)
(continued)

The Group (continued) REE(E)
Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued) HERERERGE)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (continued) HE—FT——F=H=+—HIFE
(&
Effect of
prior year

adjustments in
2011 relation to

(as previously exchange Total 2011
reported) differences Reclassification  adjustments  (as restated)
Z8--F LEEENER “8-F
(NEAFMER) Eilod 7 ENAE RRAE (&E51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THEr TAT THEr THT

(note 4(a)) (note 37)

GEZE)) (BizEa7)

Repayment of amount due to BEMEM— WE
sharsholder of a subsidiary NG E = - (28,500) (28,500) (28,500)
Interest paid ERHE (255) - - - (255)

Net cash used in financing MEERFARS

activities ik (255) - (78,500) (78,500) (78,755)
Netdecreaseincashandcash ~ B&RELZEERY

equivalents AR (61,428) - - - (61,428)
Cash and cash equivalents at ENvRERRLEE

beginning of year EH 286,711 - - - 286,711
Effect on foreign exchange rate ~ ERE 52 &/&

changes 574 - - - 574
Cash and cash equivalents atend EXZRERELZE

of year, represented by bank ER T2 AR

balances and cash EERBRE 225,857 - - - 205,857

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 .



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4. RIELEEIRE(E)
(continued)

The Company VNN
Statement of financial position BB AR R TR
At 31 March 2011 R-ZFE——F=H=+—H
Adjustments
31 March 2011 in relation to
(as previously exchange Re- Total 31 March 2011
Reported) differences  classification  adjustments  (as restated)
8- ZB—-F
=B=1+-H EXES =B=1+-H
(R AF2H) ik B¥2R RRAH (BE5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT TEL TAT
(note 4(b) (note 37)

(Fitzz4b)) (R&E37)

Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment nE - BEREE = - - - -
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZIEE = S - - -
Current assets RHEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries RN B ARIFE 140,111 (6,152) - (6,152) 133,959
Other receivables i EIRFE 416 = = = 416
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkAeEEER 176,583 8,230 - 8,230 184,813
317,110 2,078 - 2,078 319,188
Current liabilities RHEE
Trade and other payables EREF R
ERFE 1,355 - - - 1,355
Amount due to an intermediate BT — e
holding company NG 573 = - - 573
Convertible loan notes BT ARLTEYR
designated as financial DEBRNEE L
liabilties at fair value through SRBETAR
profit or loss EERR 192,227 - (192,227) (192,227) -
194,155 - (192,227) (192,227) 1928
Net current assets MEEEFE 122,955 2,078 192,207 194,305 317,260
Total assets less current liabilties ~ #EAEFRBEE 122,955 2,078 192,207 194,305 317,260
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PR R R P ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 4,

(continued)
The Company (continued)

Statement of financial position (continued)

At 31 March 2011 (continued)

REELFEZRE(R)

Z/NCIC=)
FrHEAR I & ()
R-ZB——F=ZH=+—H(#)

Adjustments
31 March 2011 in relation to
(as previously exchange Re- Total 31 March 2011
Reported) differences  classification  adjustments  (as restated)
—§--F “E--%
=h=1+-H ERZH =B=t+-H
(ERFMER) ik B¥AE RELE (&E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THEx TEL THEx ThEr
(note 4(0)) (note 37)
(PitE4) (Pitszar)
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital A 76,537 - - - 76,537
Reserves A 46,418 (6,881) - (6,881) 39,537
122,955 (6,881) - (6,881) 116,074
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible loan notes EEARATE
designated as financial BBR B RA
liabilities at fair value through REZERARZ
profit or loss TRREERE - 8,959 192,227 201,186 201,186
122,955 2,078 192,227 194,305 317,260
HHEREEARAT - Fik 2012 89



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 4R 2% Bt (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS

(continued)

a) Adjustments in relation to exchange differences in

consolidated financial statements

As a result of the strategic shift in the business focus
of Group to coal business in PRC, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the functional currency
of the Company has been changed from HK$ to RMB
from 1 April 2010 onwards. As the functional currency of
the Company is RMB while the Company keeps books
and records in HK$, which is also the presentation
currency of the Company and of the Group, exchange
gain/loss should be recognised for the monetary assets
and liabilities denominated other than in RMB in profit or
loss, and the exchange difference arisen from translating
the Company’s financial statement (in RMB) into the
presentation currency (HK$) should be recognised as
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange translation reserve account in accordance with
HKAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates” and the Group’s accounting policy set out in note
3(p). Such exchange differences during the year ended
31 March 2011 were mainly arisen from the Company’s
cash and cash equivalents and convertible loan notes

designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL.

It has come to the attention of the directors of the
Company that in preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2011, the
exchange differences that should be recognised in profit
or loss was incorrectly debited to other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Accordingly, an adjustment was made for the above
exchange differences in respect of the translation of
these monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies to the functional currency of the
Company and the exchange differences arising from
the translation of the Company’s functional currency
(RMB) to the presentation currency (HK$) in respect of
the results and the statement of financial position items
of the Company in accordance with HKAS 21 and the

accounting policy set out in note 3(p).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

4. CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR ERRORS
(continued)

b)

Adjustments in relation to incorrect measurement
of exchange differences in the Company’s financial
statements

It has also come to the attention of the directors that
there were incorrect measurement of the exchange
differences on translating monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies to the functional
currency of the Company and on translating the
Company’s results and the statement of financial position
items from its functional currency to the presentation
currency. Such exchange differences during the year
ended 31 March 2011 were mainly arisen from the
Company’s cash and cash equivalents, amounts due
from subsidiaries and convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at FVTPL. Adjustments for material
differences have been made to correct this incorrect
measurement accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 5 3R 2% B (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &&= —Z

92

—ZHEZA=tHALFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Reserve estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
coal reserves. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological, technical
and economic factors, including quantities, grades, production
techniques, recovery rates, production costs, transport costs,
commodity demand and commodity prices. Estimating the
quantity and/or grade of reserves requires the size, shape and
depth of ore bodies or fields to be determined by analysing
geological data such as drilling samples. This process may
require complex and difficult geological judgements and
calculations to interpret the data.

BAS S ot H i R 5t R EABA
EZEERR

RIEF M AT L AN SR B 2 & 5 R
W NRARERAHTRLEMER
KRGHMZEERBEREEFLH
B - ARt RB&R - R FEF RAARER
BERBEBEECRIEMBERREHRL
HEEH - BERERATERNIRILE
ftiat o

ZE A RAREBRREFERS - W
EFl EsHAFHER BIER] et 8 -

Az F At iz AR - SAMER]
FEBR SRR - BEERTHE
B R REAEIHERR,

EETTHBARR 2 EBHIR

AT RBERRRZ EBRELEN®E
HMAERB G TRBAEZR 2 At
ERR - AIREBHE T —EMRFE
ZEBENBBERAERIEHEATE -

fEE e
RERANIRKERIEGEEAEE 2
@E}ET%EHX SZIEETEMREE o BiT
B2 ApitE  BifREERER
HEELEFTERBE  ERBEH
= - mfiz - EER - RIKE - AE
AR~ BRI - BBk mE
1o AEtREZBRER, MO
HIRBEREEREHEEIESNT - BE
BREkIEL 2 RE - BFMRRRE - It
T Froiod M AR R0 2 10 B 1 BT IR =t
EUAMREREEUE -

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 S e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Reserve estimates (continued)

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate reserves
change from period to period, and because additional
geological data is generated during the course of operations,
estimates of reserves may change from period to period.
Changes in reported reserves may affect the Group’s financial
results and financial position in a number of ways, including the
following:

i) Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes in
estimated future cash flows.

ii) Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
the profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where the
useful economic lives of assets change.

if) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

iv)  The carrying value of deferred tax may change as a result
of changes in the asset carrying values as discussed
above.

Carrying value of non-current assets and impairment of
assets (other than goodwill)

Non-current assets, including property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and impairment losses, where
appropriate. These carrying amounts (exclude exploration and
evaluation assets classified as intangible assets) are reviewed
for impairment whenever internal and external sources of
information indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In estimating the
recoverable amounts of assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with the non-current
assets and discount rates, are made. If future events do not
correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable amounts
will need to be revised, and this may have an impact on the
Group’s results of operations or financial position.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of mining right and exploration and evaluation

assets

The Group assesses each cash generating unit annually to
determine whether any indication of impairment exists, which
included internal and external sources of information for
mining rights, and facts and circumstances for exploration and
evaluation assets. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which
is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. These assessments require the use of
estimates and assumptions such as long-term commodity
prices, discount rates, future capital requirements, exploration
potential and operating performance. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value because quoted market prices are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which require significant judgement estimates
such as sale volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. Management has assessed its cash generating units
as being an individual mine site, which is the lowest level for
which cash flows are largely independent of other assets.
Reversal of impairment loss of HK$26,027,000 for mining right
and HK$13,706,000 for exploration and evaluation assets was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2012
(2011: impairment of HK$28,340,000 for mining right and of
HK$13,255,000 for exploration and evaluation assets was
recognised). Details of impairment test on intangible assets are

set out in note 16.

Valuation for convertible loan notes

The fair value of convertible loan notes are determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group has adopted judgement to
select an appropriate valuation method and make assumption
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
transaction date and each reporting date with reference
to the valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers. The valuation model
requires the input of subjective assumptions which includes
the stock price volatility, expected dividend yield, risk free
rate and expected life. As at 31 March 2012, the carrying
amount of convertible loan notes designated as FVTPL is

HK$213,889,000 (2011: HK$201,186,000).

Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect

the fair value estimate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwiill is impaired required an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise. No impairment loss (2011: HK$15,065,000) was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2012.
Details of impairment test on goodwill are set out in note 17.

Write down of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging analysis of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use in production or
sales. The management estimates the net realisable value for
consumables and coals based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group carries out
an inventory review on a item-by-item basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.
As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$38,483,000 (2011: HK$36,701,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjust credit limits based on payment history
and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined
by the review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit losses
based upon its historical experience and any specific customer
collection issues that it has been identified. Credit losses have
historically been within the Group’s expectations and the
Group will continue to monitor the collections from customers
and maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit losses.
As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of trade and bills
receivables is HK$2,499,000, net of accumulated impairment
losses of HK$NIl (2011: HK$823,000, net of accumulated
impairment losses of HK$719,000).

Provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs is determined by management based on their past
experience and best estimation of future expenditures, after
taking into account existing relevant PRC regulations. However,
in so far as the effect on the land and the environment from
current mining activities becomes apparent in future years, the
estimate of the associated costs may be subject to revision
from time to time. Details of the Group’s provision for close
down, restoration and environmental costs are set out in note
27.
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6.

F=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

6. TRITH

Categories of financial instruments a) SRIEMER
The Group The Company
TEE ¥ N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F —T——% ZB-=fFf T %
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FExT FHET
(restated)
€==x7l))
Loans and receivables B EIBGR
(including cash and cash (@%iﬁ@&
equivalents) HeSEIER) 265,014 231,756 361,298 318,772
Financial liabilities at Y72 B SRR ARG T
amortised cost EZEBAME 26,783 32,188 1,124 1,928
Financial liabilities at FVTPL 122 F{EFIBR I
EEENEE
ZEmAas 213,889 201,186 213,889 201,186
Financial risk management objectives and policies b) HHFEREREBEREEE
The Group’s major financial instruments include security AEEzETESRT ABERE
deposit, trade and other receivables, cash and cash e - BUWE R K& E e U

equivalents, trade and other payables, amount due to
an intermediate holding company and convertible loan
notes. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency expenditures, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Certain receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and payables of the Group and the Company are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity to which they relate.
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6.

98

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table shows the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate.

6.

I E (%)
b) BHRRERERRBR ()

B ER(E)
TRETRAEBRARRF]
REHEEREEC#
RUARBEERIEEE N
I EBRETECEERER
BEEEREER -

The Group
S|
As at 31 March 2012 As at 31 March 2011

RZZ-—F=ZA=1t-H RZE——%=A=1—H
United United
States States
Euro Dollars Euro Dollars
HK$ (“EUR”) (“USD”) HKS$ (“EUR") (“USD”)
B EY BT e
Br  (Exl) (%x) wr Bz (Ex)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR THT THT THT
Assets BE 207,692 - - 185,304 156 244
Liabilities B 215,013 - - 203495 411 313

The Company
b /N

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
R=Z—=F RNT——F
=A=+—-H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
(restated)
(re=E=51)
Assets BE 361,393 319,188
Liabilities AaffE 215,013 203,114
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b)

®)
FZA=t—RALFE

(continued)

i)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies b) HHERKREREBENEERE)
Currency risk (continued) ) EBEERERGE)
Sensitivity analysis BRE T
The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign ZIK SEERBITEATE
currency risk of HK$, EUR and USD. T~ BT IR T 2 AN A
/\ o
The following table details the group entities’ TRHFNAEEERBEE
sensitivity to a 5% (2011: 5%) decrease and T BT RETH S AE
increase in HK$, EUR and USD against each BERZNEEE (B
group entity’s functional currency (including HK$ BILRARE) ZEXRT
and RMB). 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate B5%(ZF——%F : 5%)
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally ZHRRE 5% (=T ——
to key management personnel and represents F:5%)RAEEEEA
management’s assessment of the reasonably B 7 #B B #R H1 Bz T R
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The ZHRRELLR  WIEERE
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding [ & INEE B R n] pE & I8 &
foreign currency denominated monetary items G2 c MERED 7F)ﬂ
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a BEAINESHEZ RER
5% (2011: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. EEIEE - WREINEFE R
A positive number below indicates an increase in Z5%(—F——%F : 5%)
profit for the year and decrease in accumulated HE BN FRZIBE -
losses (2011: decrease in loss for the year and TRZEHBFTERE
decrease in accumulated losses) where each group REEBE 2 EEH,
entity’s functional currency strengthen 5% (2011: BT~ EL B TTAES%
5%) against EUR, USD and HKS$. For a 5% (2011: —E——F 5% F
5%) weakening of each group entity’s functional A MG 0 Ko 2 5T E R
currency against EUR, USD and HK$, there would P(ZB——%F iﬂq)&ﬂé
be an equal and opposite impact. WO R BEEERD) o
Rﬂiﬁl“a’;ﬁfzmﬁﬁéﬁ
BT ETRABTRE
5%(_ ——%&F :5%)
AR & A SEMRNE
RzF2 -
The Group
A58
HK$ EUR usb
BT B EJH
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
=%--f T % =%--fF T —F =B--F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TER AT TER TAT
Profit or loss and RMEER
acoumulated losses 25HER 366 910 - 13 - 3
99
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6.

100

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank balances and security deposit
carried at prevailing market rate. The Group has
not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not
formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant would increase/decrease the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March
2012 and decrease/increase the Group’s
accumulated losses as at the reporting date by
approximately HK$1,286,000 (2011: decrease/
increase in loss for the year and decrease/
increase in accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,129,000). This was mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank balances.

Equity price risk

The Group was required to estimate the fair value
of the convertible loan notes (see note 26) at the
end of the reporting period with changes in fair
value to be recognised in the profit or loss. The fair
value adjustment would be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes in
market interest rate, the Company’s share market
price and share price volatility.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

ii)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below had been
determined based on the exposure to the
Company’s share price risk at the reporting date
only. If the Company’s share price had been 5%
higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year (as a result
of changes in fair value of convertible loan notes)
would decrease and accumulated losses would
increase by approximately HK$9,539,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: loss for
the year would increase and accumulated losses
would increase by approximately HK$7,917,000).
If the input of share price to the valuation model
of the derivatives embedded in the convertible
loan notes had been 5% lower while all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year (as a result of changes in fair
value of convertible loan notes) would increase
and accumulated losses would decrease by
approximately HK$9,375,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2012 (2011: loss for the year
would decrease and accumulated losses would
decrease by approximately HK$8,789,000).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group and the Company can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SRITE(HE)
b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b) HWEREREEBRMEEE)
(continued)
iv)  Liquidity risk (continued) iv) HREBESERE(E)
Liquidity risk table B E LRSI
The Group AEE
More than
Within 1 year but Total
1 year or lessthan Two yearsto undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years fiveyears  cash flows amount

-FRE BE-F MEE  AREAE
BEX  EOREEF Bf  RERE REE
HKG000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§'000
TAL THL TAL TAL TAT

31 March 2012 ZE-“EZfA=1-H
Non-derivative financial Liabilities #4744 REE
Trade and other payables EREFREMENTE 26,743 - - 26,743 26,743
Amount due to an intermediate holding &/ —fia /) i3k
company NIV 40 = = 40 40
Convertible loan notes designated s~ 2 AIRATEFI T
financial iabilties at FVTPL ERNREERER
LIBREERE - 200,000 - 200,000 213,889
26,783 200,000 - 226,783 240,672
31 March 2011 “2——%=R=+-H
Non-derivative financial Liabiliies #4744 REE
Trade and other payables NS REMENTE 31,615 - - 31,615 31,615
Amount due to an intermediate holding ~ FEf— R /M2R%
company NG 573 - - 573 573
Convertible loan notes designated s~ EE ARA T BSR4
financial iabilties at FVTPL EERRE ERERE
JHBREEER - - 200,000 200,000 201,186
32,188 - 00000 282188 233374
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 &
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEITE(E)
b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b) HWEREREEBRMEEE)
(continued)
iv)  Liquidity risk (continued) iv) HREBESERE(E)
Liquidity risk table (continued) B ETERSZK (E)
The Company b /N
More than
Within 1 year but Total
1 year or lessthan Two yearsto undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years fiveyears  cash flows amount
—FRg BB-F MEE  AEEERS
EZR BOREE k3 hEAH REfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL TAL TAL TAL
31 March 2012 ZE-“EZfA=1-H
Non-derivative financial Liabilities ~ 44 REE
Trade and other payables ENERREMERE 1,084 = - 1,084 1,084
Amount due to an intermediate holding (% —Fh 1) ik
company NIV 40 = = 40 40
Convertible loan notes designated s~ £ AIRATEF T
financial liabltes at FVTPL ERNREERER
LAREERE - 200,000 - 200,000 213,889
1,124 200,000 - 201,124 215,013
31 March 2011 (restated) “2——&=f=+-H
(131
Non-derivative financial Liabilities ~ #{74£REE
Trade and other payables NS REMEMNTE 1,355 - - 1,355 1,355
Amount due to an intermediate holding  FEfF— R /M2R%
company NG 573 - - 573 573
Convertible loan notes designated s~ EE ARA T BSR4
financial liabiltes at FVTPL FRNREERAR
JIBREEZE - - 200,000 200,000 201,186
1,928 - 200,000 201,928 203,114
BEAREEERAR - F4 2012 103



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B T R 2R B AE (4
For the year ended 31 March 2012 &%= —Z

6.

104

®)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

v)

Credit risk

The Group

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

The Company

The directors consider that there is no significant
credit risk on receivables from subsidiaries given
their strong financial background and good
credibility.

6.

@I A(E)
b) BIEEREEBERKE(E)
v) %E@@
KEE
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B AHHRERITEE
E A EE R X
BrzAEERSEERR
B4R & B 75 AR L 3R B 71
BHEEEREMEEZR
HE -

BB EERBEERE
AEEERBEDEIK— S'Z
Hx  BEEEEER
%Tﬁﬂ:f&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂwﬂ
B BREEREITE
W Bl HAE RS o Bboh + AR
SEEMNEEESHEBR
GBS RR 2 AT
B & %8 - LR 5L BE UK

Z e FEVEN R MR AR
BBt ARABRESER
RAEBZEERBRE X
TERE o

MR F 7 RERERFR
76(%% TREEFRZR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 7 SR R B ot ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 —E——F=/F=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c)

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than convertible loan notes
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis;

° the fair value of convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at FVTPL are estimated using
Binomial Model, as set out in note 26.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

MREREXBRAR - F 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c)

106

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement

of financial position (continued)
The Group and the Company

6. ERMTAGE
o ATE#E)
RERARER 2 AFENE

(#&)
KEE R A]
31/3/2012
—Z2——_H=H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& gt 1} E=R e

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR FTEx TR TR

Convertible loan notes B BERATE
designated as financial HIBRNP 1B a
liabilities at FVTPL NERIE 2 &Rl
B ak

EBEEERE - - 213,889 213,889

31/3/2011
—®——#=f=+—§

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—H E-H E=R 5T

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBT FBT FiBT FiBT
Convertible loan notes 1B AR AYE
designated as financial HIBR I FE B
liabilities at FVTPL NERIE 7 & &l
AfEz gk

BEEE - - 201,186 201,186
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 7 SR R B ot ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 —E——F=/F=+—HILtFE

c)

Fair value (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement

of financial position (continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of financial
liability of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

ERMTE(E)
o ATE#E)
RERARER 2 AFENE

()
E=RATEN B2 2 MAFLE
B2 ERBBHNT -

The Group and the Company

AEERARAQT
2012 2011
—2-=F —T——%
Convertible loan notes (note 26): AR EERE(MEE26) : HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FNA—H 201,186 =
Recognition of convertible loan notes ~ R=ZE——F=A+MH
on 14 March 2011 (date of extension) (JE R B H) iR AR AR
EERE - 200,000
Fair value change charged to the BEmR A EES -
profit or loss, included in a line FAGREEENERF 2
item of consolidated statement of fEEFIER
comprehensive income 12,703 1,186
Gain on translation of convertible loan & LASNEFI| (& 2 AT A%
notes denominated in a foreign BEZEANEEEZ
currency into the functional currency, Wz FTATTRER
included in administrative expenses (8,457) -
Exchange adjustment arising on BRENREEERE5|E
translation of functional currency to FrEAE N B IE & ENR
presentation currency and charged ZHNE R
to exchange translation reserve 8,457 -
At 31 March 2012 R—E——F=fF=+—H 213,889 201,186
Total loss included in profit or loss for & AR EE Y
the year Eiaa s 4,246 1,186
Total loss for the year included in ST AR RS HAE A R
profit or loss for financial liability held ~ FriA £ @ & 1E 2 #Fsk
at the end of reporting period B8z FNEIERE 4,246 1,186
Included in other comprehensive STABRET R
income arising on translation of BEREBHMEE
functional currency to presentation Z EfEmEIA
currency 8,457 -
107

MREREXBRAR - F 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

108

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less
returns, discounts allowed and value added tax. An analysis of
the Group’s turnover is as follows:

LR
EXRBEAREHEEERTEHINEFR
MERE RTMEELEER KR ZD
Yo Ko FEMGRIR AR - AR 2 2 X5
DI

2012 2011
=F-—=F —F——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Sales of coal SHEE K 190,974 104,428

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker who are also
the executive directors, for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, is more specifically focused
on the types of goods delivered and services provided by
the Group’s operating divisions. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

i) coal mine business — engages in mining and sales of
coal; and

ii) others — included provision of management services
and sales of clocks and other office related products,
which were not significant as a reportable segment of
the Group since the year ended 31 March 2011. The
operations of this segment were disposed of during the
year ended 31 March 2012.

PEEHR
REBKE D BRI EIR KR
RAEELERRE(HMARNITE
E)RE 2 ERETON  LEEE
AEBEEDBARMNE @ RATRME
RS $87 - Ht - NREBEIRBEEE
WIiEmE R B K R AT ImE D
B

) OREEER - NERRARKE
g R

i) Hitt— BEEHEERSMEE
g oA R bt R =R E
(BBE-_T——%=A=t1—
BIESFEAK  TEBASEEX
AHmENR) WNBZEKE
WEE-ZT——-F=A=+—H
EEEL -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B A R R b R ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 i Z —ZF——4=A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. EERGE)
- Segment revenue and results a) DRBERKEE

. o - The following tables present the turnover, results and TREVWAREFR SREDFEZZ
\_ ~ expenditure of the Group’s reportable segments. ¥R EERAX -

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-—ZE-——-—H=ZA=+—HL
FE

Segment Turnover: DEEERE
Sales to external customers  $5E FHINE S

Segment results DEEE

Interest income FILEWA

Change in fair value of e RIRATES]
convertible loan notes BRI IE Bz N
designated as financial BremBEs
liabilities at FVTPL MR EERE

ZAFEEE)

Central administration costs AR 4T EUAK AN A f2
and other gains and E Atz R E1E
losses

Profit before tax BB R




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEER(E)
a)  Segment revenue and results (continued) a) PDHEWENEEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE-ZE——=ZA=+—HL
FE
Coal mine
business Others Total
HIESER HAtb 4R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAET FBT
(restated)
(geE:5)
Segment Turnover: PEEERE
Sales to external customers  $5&E FHINE B 104,428 - 104,428
Segment results DEEE (67,655) (581) (68,236)
Interest income FLEWA 418
Change in fair value of & AR A B
convertible loan notes BRI IE B R
designated as financial BrzemBEZ
liabilities at FVTPL AR E ERE
ZATEE (1,186)
Central administration costs ~ F RITEAK A A K&
and other gains and HAb s N B 1R
losses (6,847)
Finance costs RE KA (19,845)
Loss before tax FRAR AT EIE (95,696)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are KDk 2 BETBUR M ST
the same as the Group’s accounting policies stated in HAEE S ECRAR - D%
note 3. Segment result represents the profit earned by/ BEIRARED P RITEAA - BIE
loss from each segment without allocation of central EEME - FEWA - BERE
administration costs including directors’ emoluments, AFEYELEBERANRE 2
interest income, change in fair value of convertible loan BBz RREEERE 2 AT
notes designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL and BB R EVE AR D PR
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief B2 @M B o WY ERD
operating decision maker for the purposes of resources i K RIR AT A 2 BAC R EH
allocation and performance assessment. WELTE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B A R R b R ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 i Z —ZF——4=A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) . DEERGE)
"~ b) Segment assets and liabilities b) HEEEKBE
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-—Z——f=H=+—-HLt
FE

Assets
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities RecEn 2 A&

Total liabilities waE

Other segment information ~ Ef 45 EER

Amounts included in the FTAD HEERK
measure of segment BEsTEE
profit or loss or regularly HRrEEge
provided to the chief RRERMZ
operating decision maker: &
Additions of property, NEWE

plant and equipment G

Depreciation and e R




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

EE SR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 &%= —Z

®)
—ZHEZA=-t-HALFE

of the revenues earned by individual reportable

segments; and

- all liabilities other than amount due to an

112

intermediate holding company, deferred tax
liabilities, convertible loan notes designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL and other corporate
liabilities are allocated to operating segments.
Liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly
liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets.

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) b) HDEEEREBEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2011 Eﬁ%‘; T —F=A=+-AL
FE
Coal mine
business Others  Unallocated Total
S Hih FN=Z 5 B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FAT
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 164,647 76 - 164,723
Unallocated assets KD v BE = = 226,274 226,274
Total assets BEE 390,997
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities DEAE 28,865 3,265 - 32,130
Unallocated liabilities Aoz BE = - 227,186 227,186
Total liabilities BaE 259,316
Other segment information: HitpEER -
Amounts included in the AR IR FISkE
measure of segment profit or Bt B E R
loss or regularly provided to FELEREE
the chief operating decision Tmf#Zi%E
maker:
Additions of property, plant NEWE
and equipment 5 Mk 4,699 = = 4,699
Depreciation and FrEREH
amortisation 9,672 - - 9,672
Impairment of BV EERE
intangible assets 41,595 = = 41,595
Impairment of goodwil EERE 15,065 - - 15,065
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE
plant and equipment N&E 2B 47 = = 47
Interest income FEHA (397) = (21) (418)
Interest expense kAR 255 = 19,590 19,845
Income tax credit PSR (10,730) = = (10,730)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances RERSBRARNEDEBD
and allocating resources between segments: fR &R
—  all assets other than cash and cash equivalents - KRREeFKFASFEEE K
and other corporate assets are allocated to HMAREEN FIBEE
operating segments. Assets used jointly by ENMELEDIE - 7R
reportable segments are allocated on the basis EoHAR EFH 2 BER

1}”3|JEH&%9§ P BRER UL
B EENR K

FHEH*F'EJEF‘MT
A BRERIEE
T EREAFEDIE
TEmWJEE&Z%raE
ABREERER
Tiétaﬁl\ - FREBE
EZ«(M/_\§E o E_HE&
HEAEZ BERS
Ett%ﬁ@a @

/

unH+ ><.;
D

Sl

)hltm%’ﬁ
D Pk 2
5 S5 B D> N PR 3

tl/ DOff '

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEER(E)
c)  Geographical information c) HEER
The following table presents turnover and certain TR AL B L @A EE S
assets and expenditure information for the Group by ZEEHEUNETEERMAYE
geographical location. *o
PRC (other than HK)
Hong Kong (place of domicile) Total
5B HE(FEEES) (FiEt) ot el
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“82--f -T % -8 -T % -8--fF -3—F
HK$'000  HK$000 ~ HK$'000  HKS000 = HK$000  HK$000
TR THL TR THL TR THT

Sales to external HETHINEP
customers - - 190,974 104,428 190,974 104,428
Non-current assets EMBBE 651 - 156,049 121,825 = 156,700 121,825
d) Information about major customers d BHEZEXFZEH
For the year ended 31 March 2011, there was no REE_T—F=A=+—H
individual customer contributed more than 10% of the IEFE - BIEERNEFIEASE
total revenue of the Group. AUTZE10% A L ©
For the year ended 31 March 2012, a single customer REBE_ZTE——F=H=1—
of the coal mine business of the Group with revenue AILFEE  AXEERBEBK 2
contributed to the Group amounting to approximately B-RPAAEEKEEBA
HK$20,342,000 had individually accounted for over 10% 20,342,000/ 7T * ARG AER
of the Group’s total revenue. AUTZE10% A L ©
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. REMAE
2012 2011
—E-—F =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Interest expenses on: FEFAZ
— Amount due to shareholder of —E —REKT B A A
a subsidiary AR R FRIE = 255
— Effective interest expenses on — R EERE 2
convertible loan notes (Note 26) ERF SRS (H5E26) - 19,590

- 19,845

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

114

10. FrEBimAs(ER)

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—2—C-fF —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
The expenses/(credit) comprises: BB (ER)EHE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNED
— current year —AFE = -
Tax in other jurisdictions HAth el AR 2 BiE
- current year —RFE 2,944 -
— under-provision in prior years —ATFERETE 373 107
3,317 107
Deferred tax (Note 28) EERIE (Ki7E28) 8,103 (10,837)
11,420 (10,730)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. Hong Kong Profits Tax has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
as there was no estimated assessable profits derived from
Hong Kong for both years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations in the PRC, one of
the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC is entitled to
exemption from PRC income tax in the first two years from the
first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction of PRC
income tax for the following three years. The subsidiary was
eligible to the above tax concession policy commencing from 1
January 2007 until 31 December 2011.

BB EHILMERSFE AT ER
BaFlZ216.5%KRTE - HREZE—
E——FE_E——F=A=+—H
LEMBEFEERNITERE FB 2G5 E
R A L AR A B TS TR R
BAEFSTRIEL B -

BEREARELMBOEMBR A
([EEMRBTE]D) REERBRIEZ
BHEEG  PEMBARMESEEZ
FREA25% °

RIERBERERRG] - AEE R
g2 AR —HB AR A EEEE
FIFE R M E ] ER RS
5t - HE=F 2R BTSSR BIR
* o ZMBRARE T LHF—A—
HREE—ZT—F+-_HA=+—8F
& Ll fRIEERBER 2 B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 10. FRfEHiRR (HE%) (&)
The tax expenses/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to REEFBERS (HEe)ElEa2H
the profit/(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of WHRPBRBREDERN(E1E) 2 ¥R
comprehensive income as follows: wr
The Group
A S
2012 2011
=F-—=F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR AT
(restated)
(g£=E=51)
Profit/(loss) before tax B ATRF](EE) 55,137 (95,696)

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax,  1ZRBIEBBERRESHF

calculated at the rates applicable to (B 2 E AR ERTERBRT

profits/(loss) in the countries concerned AaF), (E518) 2 B & HIE 15,284 (24,583)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  TEHNFL S 2 S a2 &

tax purposes 4,690 13,371
Tax effect of deductible temporary BERER 2 A E R 2R

difference previously not recognised Y- (4,495) -
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax /AR A 2 Fi7& 5728

purpose (236) (262)
Tax effect of temporary differences AIER 2 B =58 R IEE 18

and tax losses not recognised ZRRIER & (2,143) 637
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 373 107
Effect of concessionary tax rate BEME ZE (2,053) -
Tax expense/(credit) for the year AEEFHERY (FKR) 11,420 (10,730)

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 -
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11.

12.

116

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

11.

Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging/

FERl (EE)
EREF (BREMR, GEA)T

(crediting): HI|&IF -
2012 2011
—B-—=fF —ET——%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FBT
(restated)
(geE:5)
Amount of inventories sold LHEFECESH 163,308 104,357
Reversal of write down of inventories BEMRTE (17,900) -
Cost of inventories sold HETFTEZHRA 145,408 104,357
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRA(EEME(ME14)
remuneration (Note 14)): BRAN)
Basic salaries and allowances BERE & ROER 5,691 4,919
Retirement benefits scheme contributions Rk @ #1521 5% 507 603
6,198 5,522
Depreciation of property, Yz - BE &
plant and equipment REZITE 4,041 2,979
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 2 #H
(included in cost of sales) (T ASHERA) 7,166 6,693
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z AN B & 665 822
Operating leases charges on rented BHEEEME
premises KEREER 1,854 1,762
Net exchange (gain)/loss PE X (W), ERF R (558) 3,011
Loss on disposal of property, HEMZE  BEK&
plant and equipment B 3t 6 47
Waiver of long outstanding trade payables  #A% K EIR(EZENER - (809)
Interest income on financial assets notat MR A (B BEI fEIBEE A
fair value through profit or loss BRIE 2 2R EE 2 B A (1,117) (418)
DIVIDEND 12. RE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since the

end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

REBEE_ZT——F=A=1+—HIF
EABERN MNERZZ RGNS - M

B W& A RIAR T E 2SR E

B (= ——F : £) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BREF,(FHE)

a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share a)
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

FRERRT,(BE)
ARARHERE ANEBHRFRAESRER
&, (BB HRE T I #UgET

At
= .
Ean

2012 2011
—E-C—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
(restated)
(ge=H)
Profit/(loss) wR(E1E)
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of basic ~ FIASTEFREARRF],
eamnings/(loss) per share (FE518) 2% F,/ (E518) 43,717 (84,105)
Weighted average number of R RE
ordinary shares 9%
Weighted average number of ordinary FRUAGTEGRIREARZ T,/
shares for the purpose of basic (F18) 2 LBkt
earnings/(loss) per share EHE 765,373,584 765,373,584
b)  Diluted earnings/(loss) per share by SREERF(EE)

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

i) Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
Company (diluted)

ARREBABHFEASREE
ZF,/ (B18) TR g T 5 Bt

At

)  ADEEEAEGER
(B18) (#8)

2012 2011

—E——fF —=—%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FA&T

(restated)

(Fe&:751)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners — #H AFE(GEF,(BB) 43,717 (84,105)
Fair value loss of convertible loan ~ A[#GEEZE 7

notes* NFEEE 12,703 -
Exchange gain on convertible loan AI#EEEEEE 2

notes* PE A Wz (8,457) =

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners — #H A &5, (E518)
(diluted) (#54) 47,963 (84,109)

MREREXBRAR - F 2012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 13. BREBR,(FHE) (&)
b)  Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (continued) by SREREF(EE)E)
i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares i) EHBERMETIEEE)
(diluted)
2012 2011
—EB-=fF —E——f
Weighted average number of FAGTESREREF],
ordinary shares for the purpose of  (E318) 7 L impk
basic earnings/(loss) per share IS 765,373,584 765,373,584
Effect of conversion of convertible R E EZiE 2
loan notes* B 1,000,000,000 -
Weighted average number of BUtE g samF,

ordinary shares for the purpose of  (E518) 2 Ei@A%
diluted of diluted earnings/(loss) hnE 98

per share 1,765,373,584 765,373,584
g The calculation of the diluted loss per share for the * HAREBRAIMREESR
year ended 31 March 2011 does not assume the BeamegREBR
conversion of the convertible loan notes since its L BMFEHBE=-ZT
conversion would result in a decrease in loss per ——F&=ZA=+—H1t
share. The basic and diluted loss per share are the FESREEHERIT
same. BERIEHEER - 5K

EARREEEIEER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B A R R b ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 i Z —F——4=A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 14. EEREREEAEME
OLUMENTS

. o ~_a) Directors’ emoluments a) EEHe
\_ - The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2011: DS EN SN (ZE——F
six) directors were as follows: RNE)EFEEZHME0T
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-E-——-F=A=+-—HL
FE

Executive directors: HITES .
Lo Fong Hung BHAI
Wang Xiangfel AR
Kwan Man Fa e

Independent non-executive B EHT
directors: s
Wong Man Hin, Raymond BEXE
Lam Ka Wai, Graham MEB

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—HI|LFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

120

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2011

14, EENRSREEAEME(E)

a) ZEFME(E)
BE-_E-—F=A=+-Hit

FE
Other emoluments
HivB e
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
E2 =30 RIER
ik AR A Ft

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

Executive directors: HiTES:
Lo Fong Hung BERA - - - -
Wang Xiangfei AR - 240 12 252
Kwan Man Fai X E - 240 12 252
Independent non-executive BYEHT
directors: s
Wong Man Hin, Raymond B 240 - - 240
Lam Ka Wai, Graham MRE 240 = = 240
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey BRi2iE 240 - - 240
720 480 24 1,224

There was no arrangement under which directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the two years
ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, except Ms. Lo Fong
Hung has agreed to waive her director’s fee from 25
March 2011 onwards.

HE-ZT——FK-F—F=
A=+ HIMEAFE - BE
FARTREEZZT—F=A
Z+hHBREEESHSIN -
LA AN EE ok [R) B PEE (A B
copder X
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14, EERSHREEAEME(E)

b)  Senior management’s emoluments by =REBEAEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the RAEEREESHFALY W
Group, two (2011: three) were directors of the Company H(ZE——F : ZZ)BARA
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments B HEMeEHNEX - % T
of the remaining three (2011: two) highest paid individuals —H(ZE——F MB)E&=aH
were as follows: AT ZHEIT :
2012 2011
—B-=fF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits < ~ 285 X a7 1,291 1,287
Retirement benefits scheme RIREHETBIHER
contributions 28 9
1,319 1,296
The emoluments of three (2011: two) highest paid =2(CE——F MB)ReH
employees fall in the following band: BEZMEN T TIIMEEHE
Number of individuals
AE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——fF
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 2
c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the C)

directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the
two years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

RNEE-—E——F=H=+—8H
F—E——F=A=+—HItW
BFE  AEESEREAQFE
ERAB T A LT E B
© MEAE S B AL R sk
REE 2 HE) - SEBKEZ
BEEGRS(E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% BERZE

The Group NE

Furniture,

Leasehold equipment

land and Plant and and motor
buildings machinery vehicles Total

HET#R B
BF RBEREE RERAE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET

Cost B
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-ZFMA—-H 7,869 39,087 32,411 79,367
Exchange realignment fE 5 A% 366 802 83 1,251
Additions NE = 2,487 2,212 4,699
Disposal e - 27) (141) (168)
At 31 March 2011 R-E—F=f=+—H 8,235 42,349 34,565 85,149
Exchange realignment i 7 AR 343 805 159 1,307
Additions R 36 59 802 897
Disposals HeE = = (49) (43)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (23,023) (31,027) (54,050)
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=fA=1+—H 8,614 20,190 4,456 33,260

Accumulated depreciation and ZEHER
amortisation ]
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZFMA—H 415 24,068 31,268 55,741
Exchange realignment B i A2 25 97 10 132
Charge for the year KEEXH 538 1,953 488 2,979
Eliminated on disposals I ERE - 9 (39) 48)
At 31 March 2011 R-T—F=f=1+—H 978 26,099 31,727 58,804
Exchange realignment B 7 AR 51 176 46 273
Charge for the year KEEXH 519 2,581 941 4,041
Eliminated on disposals o R 5 = = (37) (37)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR - (23,023) (31,027 (54,050)
At 31 March 2012 RZZE-——4$=A=+—H 1,548 5,833 1,650 9,031

Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=1+—H 7,066 14,357 2,806 24,229
At 31 March 2011 RZE—F=fA=+—H 7,257 16,250 2,838 26,345
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

PR R R P ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HiZE —E——F=A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERRE (&)

(continued)

The Company VNN
Furniture,
equipment and
motor vehicles
&7
RERAE
HK$’000
FAET
Cost A
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—EFMHA—AH 60
Exchange realignment RIS 3
At 31 March 2011 R-F——F=A=t+—H 63
Exchange realignment PE & FEHE 14
Additions NE 644
Disposals e (19)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 702
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation ESei-95% £
At 1 April 2010 R-_Z—ZFHA—H 60
Exchange realignment DE R 3
At 31 March 2011 NR-ZE——&F=H=+—¢ 63
Exchange realignment [ 5, 2 2
Charge for the year REE T H 5
Disposal HE (19
At 31 March 2012 RZFE—ZF=A=+—H 51
Carrying amount AREE
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 651
At 31 March 2011 R-ZF——%=A=+—H -
WRARERERAR - £ 2012 .



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R R R Y (4R
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE - ——F=F=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

- The above property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

ight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the term
of the leases or 3.33%

10% to 25%

10% to 25%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, equipment and
motor vehicles

The carrying amount of leasehold land and buildings shown
above comprises:

15. ¥I3 ~ BB KR (&)

B - BB RREBAEREIET
S RETIRIE -

e+ 1B F HE3.33%
BF ZEEEE

TS R i B 10%%25%

- BER 10%ZE25%
a8

EXBRZEET W REFREES
&

Outside Hong Kong, held under medium {7 R &S5 -
term lease R EBAEE

The Group
rEE
2011
—T——F
HK$'000
FET
7,257




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 75 S e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
The Group
iy 3|
Exploration

and Patents

evaluation Mining and
assets rights trademarks Total

BHRR HRIE
TEEE ke PSEL wmE

(Note i &ii)  (Notei&ii)

(PaFikei) (PR aFiRii)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHL FHIT FHT

Cost AR
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZFmMA—H 44,633 97,740 663 143,036
Exchange realignment P& 5 SR 1,512 3,312 = 4,824
At 31 March 2011 WZE——F=F=+—H 46,145 101,052 663 147,860
Exchange realignment [ 5 A% 1,920 4,205 - 6,125
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARA] = = (663) (663)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=1—H 48,065 105,257 = 153,322

Accumulated amortisation ~ EiH# 85 R RE
and impairment

At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZSFMA—H - 3,205 663 3,868
Exchange realignment bEE i, SH B - 224 - 224
Impairment loss for the year — REEREEE 13,255 28,340 - 41,595
Charge for the year KEELH - 6,693 - 6,693
At 31 March 2011 R-_ZT——&=A=+—H 13,255 38,462 663 52,380
Exchange realignment P 5, 451 1,250 - 1,701
Reversal of impairment loss B35 {EE18 (13,706) (26,027) = (39,733)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - = (663) (663)
Charge for the year REEZH - 7,166 - 7,166
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=1—H = 20,851 = 20,851
Carrying amount IRE{E
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=1+—H 48,065 84,406 - 132,471
At 31 March 2011 R-E——F=A=1+—H 32,890 62,590 - 95,480
Patents and trademarks rights have definite useful lives and are BEREREEEZFERFHER
amortised on a straight-line basis over five years. WIRE AN AF AEEE -

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

126

Notes:

i)

The mining rights and the exploration and evaluation assets
acquired as part of a business combination during the year ended
31 March 2010 were initially recognised at their fair values on
acquisition with reference to professional valuation which was
based on discounted cash flow method with reference to the
operating environment of each of the operating entities.

Mining right

The management conducted impairment review of the mining
rights at the end of each reporting period with reference to
the professional valuation which was based on value-in-use
calculations. The calculations used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets prepared by management covering a five-
year period with growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate of coal mine business, and discount rate
of 29% (2011: 25.9%) using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the cash generating unit (“Mining CGU”), being the
subsidiary operates under the mining right. Cash flows beyond
5 year period have been extrapolated using zero growth rate per
annum. Changes in selling prices and direct costs were based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
During the year ended 31 March 2011, due to the decline of
average selling price of coal which has resulted in a decline of
gross profit and recurring losses incurred by this Mining CGU,
the recoverable amount of this Mining CGU was less than its
carrying amount. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
HK$28,340,000 was allocated to the mining right which was
recognised in profit or loss and included in impairment loss on
intangible assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, due to the increase in
average selling price of coal which resulted in increase in gross
profits and operating income from this Mining CGU, and with
reference to the professional valuation which was based on the
discounted future cash flow to be generated, the management
expected that the recoverable amount of this Mining CGU
exceeds its carrying amount. Therefore, a reversal of impairment
loss of approximately HK$26,027,000 was allocated to the mining
right which was recognised in profit or loss and included in
reversal of impairment loss on intangible assets.

16.

BLEE(E)

W3

BHE—ZT-TF=A=+HILFEW
BRI B R N EEEFRER
Aft—H#D  WBRRELZERLE

RECUBRReREEFH 2 EEM
& - ML AR 2 A FHERER -

SRR

B2 BN SRS AR 2 RIS ERD
BREFEABEAE A ELE 2 BEHE
YRR ITRER LT EERIE
BAEEE AR S EE BN (BRERE
TR EZMB AR ([ FREREELE
)R AFPRBE ZRETR
STER  W2RBRTHBEBEEXERZE
HFIERER « REARMRIRRERSE
A BN 2R B AT iSRG 2 SRR (E
BERFERR 2 HATARE29% (=
——4F :259%) c AFEHMEZES
RERESFTIEE R - SEBRE
B AN EE BB RIS A KE
BB E - BE_T——%=H
=+—HALFE  ARERTHEET
HKEOEBZREREEEBNEEZE
TR A xSRBS - IR S
EABE e SEE R EERE -
Atk - R {EETHE4)28,340,000/8 L E 2
il 2 SRR IE N MBS HERR - 25 BER
BERERIE -

BE-_T——F=A=+—HULFE"
AR ER Y EE E A B EEZIRER
CEEBMESZ R KL IRESE
- 2BUEEZBRAKBEESRE
e 2 B¥EMEE  BEEBENZERE
R EABN A ESERRERR
B - Bt - BEEDR(EE1E4726,027,000
BB DS RBETRIESER 2
P AEREERBERBBRRE -

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
S 75 4 2 B (4R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 i Z —E——F=A=+—HILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

ii) Mining right (continued)
Exploration and evaluation assets

It represented exploration right possessed by the Group which
the Group owns a priority to transfer the exploration right to
mining right. The management conducted impairment review of
the exploration and evaluation assets at the end of each reporting
period with reference to the professional valuation which was
based value-in-use calculations. The calculations used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets prepared by management,
which expected mining right will be obtained and mining activities
will be commenced in 2015, covering a five-year period with
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
of coal mine business, and discount rate of 24.7% (2011: 25.9%)
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash
generating unit (“E&E CGU”), being the subsidiary operates under
the exploration right. Cash flows beyond 5 year period have been
extrapolated using zero growth rate per annum, which was based
on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs were based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. During the year ended 31 March 2011, due
to the decline of average selling price of coal which resulted in a
decline of gross profit and recurring losses incurred by this E&E
CGU, the recoverable amount of this E&E CGU was less than its
carrying amount. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
HK$13,255,000 was allocated to the exploration right which was
recognised in profit or loss and included in impairment loss on

intangible assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, due to the increase in
average selling price of coal which resulted in increase in gross
profits and operating income from this E&E CGU, and with
reference to a professional valuation which was based on the
discounted future cash flow to be generated, the management
expected the recoverable amount of this EXE CGU exceeds
its carrying amount. Therefore, a reversal of impairment loss of
approximately HK$13,706,000 was allocated to the exploration
right which was recognised in profit or loss and included in

reversal of impairment loss on intangible assets.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

16.

BLEE(E)

W3

i)

(#)

PRUERE ()

BRI B E
HigASEBHA 2 FE - A5EHE
BRI EER BRI B - B
BRAE M UM & R 2 B ER R
FEREEET A EL 2 BEGHELD
BRI HEEETRAERS - ZiTE
FERRBREEEEARSEEEN(A]
BERIE T RTAS & 2 B A B ([ #h iR AT
HRSEEBMD)REZ AFMK
BE B REEN  WIEHEESEK
BEMIBESEN T —AFMAHA
WELBRTBBEEES RFEE
R REARBBERTEREEEE
L ZiZ B AT 2 B8 REEEAE
M ERRZFRATBIRE24.7% (=%
——% :259%) - AFEHEEBIES
RERESFETERRIRITHEERTEA
HEET - SEREBEAAEBIRBAIED
RETISRREB 2 TBHHE - HEZ
Z——F=A=+—HIFE ' alE
R EBDERZMRELT GRS E
BT FTEE A 2 BRI A RERIS B 1
B8 - ZEE R AR EEEN 2T
W B & OREBREE - ALt © BIEE
8 4913,255,0007% 70 B 7 Bt &= #) R 78
WNE=STER « 2 AEFEERER

8o

BE—_ZT——F=A=1+—HLFE"
HRERFHEE EFEESZHTER
FHEE S EABNEE Z EFREEI
wIZIN - 2RBUAFTEA Z VR ARRE S
MEEHZEEMGE EREEHZ
IR R EIR S EL SN 2 AT R B £ 58
RBERREE - Ft - BERERSELY
13,706,000 7T B 2 B & B R 0 7R
BatER - 2 AEMEERERBR
@c
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Details of the Group’s mining right and exploration right are as

BLEE(E)
AER B2 SRR M BV R A 2 FFHIB IO T

16.

follows:

Mines Locations Expiry dates Note
&5 i B Z|H8A Bt E
Mining right
RIERE
Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine  Bei Ta Mountain (t#5111) 30 June 2018 -
SUREE R IE Qitai County (& & ) —E-N\FXRA=TH

Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region

(i EmaRR)

MEBREETR AR

JEE 1L
Exploration right Bei Ta Mountain (1t (1)) 20 February 2014 a

PR
Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine
B FR KRR

Qitai County (3 & &)

(FBgETRERE)
MERERRARE
aa%

JEE 1L

Note a): The exploration right represents licence for the right for
exploration in the specified location in the PRC, which is
included in the exploration and evaluation assets of the Group
and the period of this exploration right is 2 years.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the exploration right
was renewed to 20 February 2014.

The directors of the Company believed that, with reference
to a legal opinion, the Group owns the priority to transfer the
exploration right to the mining right before the next expiration
of exploration right.

128

“ET—NF=-—A=+H

Xingjiang Uygur Autonomous Region

B RAEFEFE T IS TE s R E 1T HY IR
ZHRENMBIER Bt AREERZ
BIRRFHEEE - WERE Z IR

MfzFa) -

RBE-T——-F=A=+—H1
FE - HHFEEEEEE T —NF
ZA=+H-

ARREFRE  RBEEER

AR BB T E B IR AE S Al 5
BRI DRI BT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL

17. &

The Group
- AEE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost AR
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and RZE—ZTFOA—RH —E——F=H
31 March 2012 =+t BRkR-_T——F=ZA=+—8 37,469
Impairment A
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE-—TFHHA—H 22,404
Impairment loss recognised in the year REBEE-_ZT——FZA=Z+—HILFE
ended 31 March 2011 R R EEE 15,065
At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=1+—HBK
—E-——F=A=1+—H 37,469
Carrying amount BREE

At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

17. GOODWILL (continued)

130

Goodwill acquired in a business combination was allocated to
two CGUs that were expected to benefit from that business
combination with reference to professional valuation which
was based on discounted cash flow method with reference
to the operating environment of each of the operating entities.
Goodwill has been allocated to two CGUs for the purpose of
goodwill impairment testing. At the end of the reporting period,
the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to these CGUs is as
follows:

17.

B8 (&)
HEBEHRBLHEGSERKE
ERCRERBRECHMARTSAE
TEETZBEME - DEEIEHRK
REREBAHZMBARSELE
- gt ZREAAnS  BECs
REEMER e EE BN - RIE HE
BRE PEERFREELEML
AEREENT

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FAT

Qitai County Zexu Trading

Company Limited (TR EHMER S EE
FEREEBEERETLRF) B ])

(“E&E CGU”)

Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal
Company Limited
(REZIRKRBREELRR)
(“Mining CGU”)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, due to the decline of
average selling price of coal which has resulted in a decline of
gross profit and recurring losses incurred by these CGUs, the
recoverable amount of these CGUs were less than the carrying
amount of goodwill plus the carrying amount of identifiable
net assets. Based on the aforesaid value-in-use calculations
as detailed in note 16, the directors determined to recognise
an impairment loss of approximately HK$4,832,000 and
HK$10,233,000 respectively in relation to goodwill arising on
acquisition of Qitai County Zexu Trading Company Limited (&
SEL2IARE AR E(EAR]) and Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal
Company Limited (A2 LR AR & FA A]) during the
year ended 31 March 2011.

TEREEREERAETAT

REZIRERKEREERT]
(MRS ELEM )

B E—w—==—4= F=—E %
B ARERFHEEERZSRE
EEBNEEZENRD MEGEE
HEE  ZSReEEBEMN 2 A
CEIREEZRAEMNZ5EE
FEZEAME - BiE Ll FREER
A (FERKIFE16) - EEARATERER
REBEE-_T——F=ZA=+—HILF
ERETeREENEBRETAF
EARSHZIFRHEKERELRRFTE
R 2 REE RS F414,832,000/8
75 %10,233,000/8 7T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B A R R b R ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 i Z —ZE— 4= =+—HILFE

18. SECURITY DEPOSIT

- The balance represents a deposit placed with a bank to
re the Group’s obligation to restore the environment after
mining. The deposit bears interest at the prevailing bank saving
interest rate and can be withdrawn upon the expiry of the
Group’s mining right and fulfillment of environment restoration
obligation.

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. REEE
ZN
BHREARBERETREREERE
ZEEMRNIRITFEZFR  F35R
ERZBRITHENEGFE - XARK
KB RBEE R M RIREER
ERFEEER -

19. RHIBATZIRE

The Company
b N
2011
—F——%
HK$'000
Tt
(restated)

(R&E71)

Unlisted shares, at cost JEEWRAD - RAA
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURFTE A BIRUE

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non
interest-bearing and repayable on demand.

133,959

133,959

FEA P B A RIRIE R EER - TR

N 28 it
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19.

132

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at

31 March 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

RHB QR 2RE (&)
KA ZE——_FR_T—F=
A=t—BARFEZTEMNBARFHE

LU
Nominal
value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ shares/
registration registered
Class of and operation capital Percentage of equity Principal
Name of subsidiary sharesheld MR/ M CEITKRHBAEMS  attributable to the Group activities
WEAR AR FislRaER REEHH SMER FrEEELRERD L TEEHR
2012 2011
Z2--F —Z-F
% %
Directly held:
EERE:
Lasting Power Investments Ordinary BVI US$1 100 100 Investment
Limited Ll RBRLEE 1% holding
HEREER LA REER
Indirectly held:
BiEEs
Star Fortune International Ordinary BVI US$100 100 100 Investment
Investment Company Limited ~ Z3@8% EERURS 100% 7T holding
(“Star Fortune”) REER
ENERERREARLA
(TENE&))
Ming Kei Kai Yuan Investment Ordinary Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 100 100 Investment
Company Limited Limi Bh 60,000,00057C holding
REFRREERAA RER
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Registered PRC RMB30,000,000 100 100 Coal mining
Company Limited* HfEAR H AR#30,000,0007C and sales
AEZHNREREREELA FRRHERR
Qitai County Zexu Trading Registered PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Exploration of
company Limited EMER i AK#2,000,0007 coal mine
SRgERERREAARY REER

* Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

# Registered under the laws of PRC as domestic enterprise

RIETP EDEGIGEM A B E B

ARIER BUAGIEM AR AR
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RMBARIZIRE (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, FRIWRAAREEREAETEFLEN
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally EEEENEEZAEBRNWE AT °
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of EERAE HIEMKB AT ZER
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result CEHERBNITE -

in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as AR 4R 8 F el B fE ﬁiéﬁim BA
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. AR EMEBRITZERES -
20. INVENTORIES 20. F&
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FiBT
Consumables SHE 2,321 1,231
Coal R 36,162 35,470
38,483 36,701
During the year ended 31 March 2012, a reversal of RBEZZT——F=A=1T—RHIEF
HK$17,900,000 for inventory written-down in prior year was B BRAEBRESREREZER
recognised in profit or loss (2011: HK$NIl) as the Group sold TEERBEFERBZEE @ R
inventory which had been written down in prior years at price BT FEMR T 15%@17,900,000
higher than the carrying amount. BITRERER(ZET——F : T
JL) °

BAARERARAT - £ 2012 -
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21.

134

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BWE R R H it Y FRIE
The Group The Company
A& EONS|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--f ~T—F ZB-=f ~T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FET FTExT FHET
(restated)
(EE5)
Trade and bills receivables ERETREKEZE 2,499 1,542 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts J : FEUE sh REEE
of trade receivables - (719 - -
2,499 823 = _
Prepayments, deposits and BRZIE - Bk
other receivables H b fE Y R IE 2,555 3,861 102 416
5,054 4,684 102 416

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to recover
or recognise as expense within one year.

The Group’s sales to coal customers are largely done on
payment in advance basis. For certain well-established
customers, the Group allows an average credit period of 90
days.

Included in the trade and bills receivables are bills receivables
amounted to approximately HK$2,348,000 (2011:
HK$594,000) aged within one year.

P 8 M R e L At R W SR IR TR AR
—FRRERER R

AEERBEKREF ZHERNTHIEE
NRIEEEEDL - B THEERRITZ
BEME @ AEEEZ FHEES
Q0K o

STAERWER R EREE 2 ElRE
B 492,848,000 L (& — — & :
594,000/ 7T) © BRIk B—FA °
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“HE=R=t+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade
receivables (presented based on the invoice date) and bills
receivables (presented based on the issuance date of relevant

21. BWE %k&,HJMEM& I (48)
PR EIRIA R - R R RER
EIHH;J‘J)&JEH&%TF(&*B?%%TF%’E
A2 F)) (RIBREER %) 2R

bills), net of allowance for doubtful debts was as follows: B DATANT ¢
The Group
ES

2012 2011
=F-—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Within 90 days CFNA 1,977 740
91-180 days 91 RE180KN 522 =
181 days — 365 days 181K E365KK = =
Over 1 year HBiE1E - 83
2,499 823

a) As of the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade and bills receivables that were past due but not

impaired are as follows:

a) RESHEERE  2AafER

31/3/2012 —F—

—H#=A=1+—H 2,499

HIRRE 2 B E R & B R R
RECOMTLNT -
The Group
rEE
Neither Past due but not impaired
past EEHERHRERE
due nor 91 to
Total impaired <90days 365 days Over 1 year
REHE NKZE
BE AKRHBRBE PRIOX 365K  HEB1F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000  HK$'000
FHT FAT FHT T FAT
2,499 - - -
740 - 83 -

31/3/2011 —Z——F=A=+—H 823

MREREXBRAR - F 2012
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

a) (continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. The Group did not

hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
at 31 March 2011 related to an individual customer that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group

did not hold any collateral over these balances.

b)  Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade

receivables during the year are as follows:

21

. BRERRHEMERRE ()

a)

(&)

REH B AR B BRRE 2 EUE K
HETRERCERCEREFPA
B - NEEY BRI TSR A
(ERCIERGHRL I

RZE——F=ZA=+—HE®
HEXRHBEREZERERS
R—ZBERAEBRERTZ
BREF - ARNEEERTES
AEE)  MZSEHRDERBR
2HKE - WREBALR &
BB REBARZSABIELR
B - AEBUVERZEEHRER
33 G

FARKERRRE 2 ZEH0m
™

The Group
rEE

2012 2011

—E—-fF =%

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx FHT

Balance at beginning of the year FERR 719 719
Derecognised on disposal of T BT B A B

subsidiaries 2RI ETER (719) -

Balance at end of the year FIRAER - 719

Included in the impairment loss are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$NIil
(2011: HK$719,000) which has been in financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.
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T AREEREZ ERERERE
WEREHEBAETETL(=ZZ
——4 : 719,000/87z) » EAHIR
BB RE  EXE - AL
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Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 7 SR R B ot ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 —E——F=/F=+—HILtFE

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprised bank
balances and cash held by the Group and short-term
deposits amounting to approximately HK$257,246,000
(2011: HK$225,857,000) with an original maturity of three
months or less, while the bank balance and cash held by the
Company amounting to HK$207,590,000 (restated 2011:
HK$184,813,000). The bank balances and bank deposits
carried interest at market rates ranging from 0% to 1.45%

(2011: 0% to 1.49%) per annum.

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following
amounts denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

HEeRBREEEEH
AEBZRASMRSEEHEREAR
EEBFZRTEHREB 2 URER
B A=A AZEEER
#257,246,0008 L ( =T ——F ¢
225,857,000/ 7C) * MARGEIFHZ
R1T4 8 IR £ A 207,590,0007%8 7T
(ZE——FKLEY : 184,813,000/8
T0) o SRITET MRTTTFE RN TOE
B145B(ZE——F : 0FE1.49F)
ZTHBERNEETE °

ReMhBREFERE B NIIAEEE
ERDEER AN INEHEZ TR

The Group The Company
S 3L VAN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--fF % =%B-=-f T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FAET THET TAET
(restated)
(& =51)
Great Britain Pound B - 1 - _
EUR BT - 10 - -
HK$ BT 207,595 184,824 207,590 184,813
usb e - 7 - -

As at 31 March 2012, the balances that were placed
with banks in PRC amounted to RMB40,067,000 (2011:
RMB34,474,000). Remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to the exchange controls imposed by the PRC
government.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

R—ZZTE—=—F=A=+—H " &
REBEEANRTZEHBABARE
40,067,0007L (= ——F * AR
34,474,0007T) - EAFBIRI 2 ES
AZHBEBTETTZINEEFIFTRR
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24.

138

At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade
payables (presented based on the invoice date) were as

23.

PEAS & R I EL At B =R
R IR RS - B ERGRER
BHI27)) ZBREH T -

follows:
The Group The Company
EH AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
2 —_T——4F ZB--F —_T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TExT FET FTExT FET
Within 90 days 90K 1,249 4,053 - -
91-180 days 91K E180K K 1,436 1,836 - -
181-365 days 181K E365K A 2,138 1,167 - -
Over 1 year BiE1F 12 678 - -
Trade payables e ER 4,835 7,734 = -
Receipt in advance TaERIE 1,606 5,740 = =

Value-added tax and JFEfEER &
non-income tax payable IEFTIEHL 2,333 2,656 - -
Government levies payable BB EE 10,602 4,123 - -
Accrued expenses fEETEH 1,519 1,848 1,084 1,355
Other payables H b fE{T 3R 5,848 9,514 = -
26,743 31,615 1,084 1,355

All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

The average credit period of purchases of goods is 180 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

At 31 March 2011, a balance payable to Mr. Liang Jin You (“Mr.
Liang”), a former director of certain subsidiaries of the Group,
amounting to HK$828,000 was included in other payables. The
amount was unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The amount was derecognised upon the disposal of
the subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2012.

AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

24.

FIBRMNEREEMEMNFRBHAR
—FNEE -

RERAm FHEEH/180K - K&
BESIEMBRREEBR - BERM
BRENFIRNEEHRAEE

MR-B——F=A=+—H " BfxX
E@EMETHBRABZAMTIEZEREER
i ([R5 ) A5 E0828,000/8 T2 4
% Bt AEMENZE - EiEeE8
BEE - TFHERAREREE -
REBE-—T——F=A=+—RHItF
B BERSEREEHBARRRIL
HER

PN —E T ERQ BRI

ZR R SEER - R RIEEREE -
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

a)

F=A=+—HILFE

25. BRAK f#E

a) HEmaoE
REE 2R E RS EE D 2 B
%ﬂ&ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁé%ﬁé
FER - ARRE—ERIBHZ

the Company’s individual components of equity between EYRERESHINNOT
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company ARH
Convertible ~ Exchange
Share  loannotes translation Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
TRREE
RAEE  RERE  EARE  SABR  EHER a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TihL ThL T AL ThL ThL
(note i) (note i) (note v) (note vi)
(B3H) (FizFi) (Hatv) (i
At1 April 2010 RZZ-TENA-A 191,534 55,495 - 128018 (307,152 67,890
Loss for the year (estated)  FEREE(LE7) - - - - (34,782) (34,782)
Exchange differences on AETIR S RET
translation of functional ERVESER
currency 1o presentation (&mE5)
currency (restated) - - 6,429 - - 6,429
Total comprenensive FR2EANA/ (BB 28
income/{oss) for (&E3))
the year (restated) - - 6,429 - (34,782) (28,359)
Release during the year RREEZEERE
upon expiring of RERKE
convertible loan notes - (65,495) - - 55,495 -
At31 March 2011 (restated)  W=F——F=A=1-H
(3 191,634 - 6,429 128,013 (286,439) 39,637
At 31 March 2011 RZE-——F=f=t-H
(s previously reported) (IS AE2) 191,534 - 12,118 128,013 (285,247) 46,418
Prior year adjustments LERRE
(note 4) (Btzta) - - (5,689) - (1192) (6,881)
As restated K& 191,534 - 6,429 128,013 (286,439) 39,537
Proft for the year EREH = - - - 25,734 25,734
Exchange differences on BENHEER
translation of functional B2}t
currency 1o presentation EizR
currency - - 5,223 - - 5,223
Total comprehensive EREEMALE
income for the year - - 5,223 - 25,734 30,957
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—E=A=+-H 191,534 - 11,652 128013 (260,705) 70,494
139
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

140

a)

Movements in components of equity (continued)
Note:

i) Share premium

The application of share premium is governed by Section

40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

ii) Convertible loan notes reserve

The convertible loan notes reserve represents the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible loan
notes issued by the Company. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with accounting policy set out in note 3(h).

iiii) Capital reserve

It represents negative goodwill from acquisitions of

subsidiaries prior to 1 April 2001.

iv) Statutory reserves
Reserve and enterprise expansion funds

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) regulations, all of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are required to transfer part of their profit after tax
to the reserve and enterprise expansion funds, which are
non-distributable, before profit distributions are made. The
amounts of the transfers are subject to the approval of the
boards of directors of these companies in accordance with

their articles of association.

Specific reserve for maintenance and production funds

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations for coal mining
companies, provision for production maintenance,
production safety and other related expenditures are
accrued by the Group at fixed rates based on coal
production volume (the “Maintenance and production
funds”). Appropriation for maintenance and production
funds is recognised as expense in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to the specific reserve. The
maintenance and production funds could be utilised
when expenses or capital expenditures on production

25. BRAK % (E)

a)

Tz h o &

PisE

i)

(%)

Bﬁfﬁ?ﬁf‘
EABRNOEEARARAERE
—NN\—FEREEFAOGEE -

AR EEEEHE

AR EBEER#EEEAAT
BT BRREBEZERITE
BRI H 2 (EME - ZREBERIE
MEES( TS EET BURRIE -

BRAEE
EFR-_ZFT—FMA—HAYK
BIBARMEEZEEE -

SEERE
RERILEBRAD
BEREARLME(HE])
BB REBATEEF R
JB R RIZAR 7R 5 F A g = 25
7 BR 1% % ) 82 B = A R
ZRERCEREEES - B
SHBALHZSARIZESE
RRREARREEIRARBIRLAE ©

HRERLEEESZFRFRE

RIEHEHRRDEZBRER
i’$%@M@fﬁmégm
HitRREER  LERR

Uﬁ%&$§%$b°ﬁ%&
EEESZHRNERPER
RAX - LHEFABEERR
B HBREEESAELE
HERLREERELRXEE
AERXEZA - EBAER
FEEESRBERFREED

v)

maintenance and safety measures are incurred. The
amount of maintenance and production funds utilised
would be transferred from the specific reserve back to
accumulated losses.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
functional currency to presentation currency. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 3(p).

RitEsia -

V) R EE
P& 5 & 4

SR -
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

a)

b)

25. BRAK % (E)

Movements in components of equity (continued) a) EmIHAsEE)(E)
Note: (continued) PizE - (48)
vi)  Special reserve vi)  HBEIEE
The amount in special reserve represents the difference BREESBEAERNE—FK
between the consideration paid for acquiring a further 49% BENSEBREREREBRAT
equity interest in Star Fortune International Investment Co. (TENBE])A%EAERD
Limited (“Star Fortune”) and the decrease in the carrying NREEENESIFIERERS
amount of the non-controlling interests of Star Fortune. IREERRERCZRE
vii)  Contributed surplus Vi)  BARS
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the ARBZBABBRIERNRR R
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s T AR B BETRMDMm
shares issued in exchange for the issued shares of the BozARA RMHEME @
companies being acquired and the value of net assets Fri g B A Al AR & B 7
of the underlying companies acquired at the time of the —NNAFEEHBLETETE
Group’s reorganisation in preparation for its listing in AR EEFBECERE - BE
1995. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the BARE-NN—FQFE K
Company may make distributions to its members out of the RAAIEETEATEHRAR
contributed surplus in certain circumstances. SREERREL DR ©
Authorised and issued share capital b) JAERBEITAA
Number of
ordinary
shares of
HK$0.10 each Amount
BREE
0.10TZ
ZEREE Eox-}
HK$'000
FA&T
Authorised: VETE
Balance at 1 April 2010, R-E—LFMPA—A -
31 March 2011 and —E——F=A=1T—AK
31 March 2012 —E—_—F=A=+—H
ZRER 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRBIR ¢
Balance at 1 April 2010, R-FE—ZFHA—H
31 March 2011 and —T——F=A=+—HBk
31 March 2012 —ET——-F=A=+—H
R 765,373,584 76,537

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to

All ordinary shares rank equally with regards to the

one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Company’s residual assets.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

EBERFE ARRBRTREIR

Z R

g YARARBEGHLF

A—R— B2 - R
FEABADT 2 MBAES T
> A -
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

142

c)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, and to generate sufficient profit to
maintain growth and provide a satisfactory return to its
shareholders.

The management actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders’ returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic condition. In view of this,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividend or the issue of new debt. No
changes were made in the objectives or policies during
the year.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which included trade
and other payables, amount due to an intermediate
holding company and convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital comprises all
components of equity excluding non-controlling interests.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2011, was to maintain a net debt-to-
capital ratio of not exceeding 40%, and the Group’s net
debt-to-capital decreased as a result of operating cash
inflow during the year ended 31 March 2012.

25. BRAK % (E)

c)

BERER
AEBEBERAZBEBIZTHR
PR E R MEEREIFELE
B DL BRELE ST A
R RARERIURERD
i o

BIREEE N E i REIEE
BARE  NERSKEREH
BRTAIBEHBE < B EEKF
ERFSHE B AHRI 5 2 2 4 BE B AR
IR 2 G T - WRRA B
MBECHENEBIELRAE - B
R AREEBIKTEE
REITHER TOERBELRS
B - BRHBERNERLE(FH
{EEE) -

AEBENEFERBBLRES
EMEARRBZEE - FLULM
B AKEYFRERERER
& (B 38 e & 3R S B e A 5K
A BN R ER QR 25K
TEA R A5 TE IR A AR
1Bkl 2 & BETR 2 IR S
EZBIRERE MRS FER
B - BB 2 A ANKED
7 (GHRRAERIRIN) ©

RZE——F ' AEBFEZT
——F R BFREREEL
RGEFARTIEBBL0% ZIKF o A
HE-_T——&=-A=+—H8%
B AEBEFEABELER
REERSH/AMRL ©
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- Capital management (continued)
The Group

\_ ~ The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March 2012 and 2011

are as follows:

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

25. WA e (E)
c) EAXEERE)
rERE
RZE——FR-_T—F=H
=t+—HAZFEABEREN
T

HK$'000
TAT

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to an intermediate
holding company

Convertible loan notes designated
as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Total debt
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 22)

Net debt

Total equity

REAE
B ER R E A R IE 31,615
ENM—RRNMER AR Z

RIA 573

HE R A FEIRE

BaREzeRBEZ
ARREERE 201,186
BEE 233,374
B BRekReEEER
(ffzE22) (225,857)
BEFRE

131,681
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

144

c)

Capital management (continued) o]
The Company

The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March 2012 and 2011

are as follows:

25. BRAK f#E (4

&)

BEAREIR(E)

AATF
R-BE——FEN-T——F=H
—t+—HZFEAREBELEN

T
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(restated)
(&&&:751)
Current liabilities nRBBE
Other payables and accruals Hu g R ERE R 1,084 1,355
Amount due to an intermediate e —RFR MR AR Z
holding company EOLE] 40 573
1,124 1,928
Convertible loan notes designated & E AR A ES R
as financial liabilities at fair value BaEEsemasEs
through profit or loss MR EERE 213,889 201,186
Total debt FENER 215,013 203,114
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReEMREEFEIEBE
(Note 22) (Mg5E22) (207,590) (184,813)
Net debt BEFHE 7,423 18,301
Total equity 1BRERS 147,031 116,074
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KRR ERBELR 5% 16%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

AAR A EARIGER
BISMEFTHE N Z B ANRTE Z R
il -
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26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES 26.

The Group and the Company

On 14 March 2008, the Company issued zero-coupon
convertible loan notes with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 to Ascent Goal simultaneously upon
completion of the issue and allotment of 400,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each. The notes are denominated in HK$
and entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
notes and their settlement date on 13 March 2011 in multiples
of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price HK$0.20 (subject to
adjustments) per share. The shares to be issued and allotted
upon conversions shall rank pari passu in all respects among
themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by
the Company on the date of such allotment and issue. If the
convertible loan notes has not been converted, the Company
shall repay the principal amount of the outstanding convertible
loan notes to Ascent Goal at 13 March 2011.

The convertible loan notes contain two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity
heading (“convertible loan notes reserve”). The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 11.14%.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan
notes for the year is set out below:

ARREEERE

REE KA
RZZEZENFEZA+MAE » ARFR
52 Ak % 77 & B % 400,000,000 A% & A%
HEEC 1B L EiBmlky RiF - mEZ
%17 N & 4858 /5 200,000,000/ 7T 2
TEABBREEZRE ZFZENE
TEE BT RBAENRZERE
BTN EEEAR T ——&=#
+=RAEMHE - BERIRERESRR0.20
B (AI FAR) B @R AR G E
A% - IR A1,000,000/8 70 2 15
& oo M EITREEE RN
fal & B B N B2 1T H iR AR B K
HEBTEBRNS T EYEERSE
s o WA RREEEEREER
AABER=_ZT——F=A+=HE
BEEAERIMREEZRZ2AS
& o

TR EEEERSaERERME
B o D iR A2 ([ AT
BEZEHFEEDEY - BEFI 2B
BRFR B11.14E »

RBREEREEES S 2 FAEE)
HHWT :

2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER AT
Carrying amount at 1 April RUA—RZEREE - 180,410
Effective interest expenses (Note 9) B F B (fFE9) - 19,590
Gain on translation of convertible loan AR E B = R INEHRE A
notes denominated in a foreign B EHE 2 W
currency into the functional currency - (8,959)
Exchange adjustment arising on BMEINEE R B E5| ST
translation of functional currency to EEZERFARETEEY
presentation currency and charged to TR
exchange translation reserve - 8,959
Derecognition on maturity BIHAAR | RER = (200,000)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HAZEHE - =
BEEREEERAT - £ 2012 e
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26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

An extinguishment loss of approximately HK$412,000 has
been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
March 2011.

On 11 February 2011, the Company entered into a deed of
amendment with Ascent Goal, to extend the maturity date of
the convertible loan notes for 36 months and the conversion
period will accordingly be extended for 36 months from 14
March 2011 (date of extension) to 13 March 2014. Apart from
the extension of the maturity date and the conversion period,
all terms of the convertible loan notes remain unchanged from
the original terms.

Following the change of functional currency from HK$ to
RMB, the board of directors is of the view that the convertible
loan notes upon extension of maturity date was no longer
convertible at a fixed for fixed relationship. Accordingly, the
convertible loan notes was designated as a financial liability
at FVTPL and was classified as a non-current liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The convertible loan notes was valued by the directors of
the Company with reference to a valuation report issued
by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified valuer
not connected to the Group. The change in fair value of the
convertible loan notes of approximately HK$12,703,000 have
been recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2012 (2011: HK$1,186,000).

The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the convertible
loan notes are as follows:

i) The estimation of risk free rate has made reference to
the yield of Exchange Fund Bill with same duration as the
convertible loan notes;

ii) The estimation of volatility for the underlying share price
has considered the historical price movements of those
companies engaged in similar industry;

i)  The discount rate was arrived at based on the
Company’s credit rating and select comparable
corporate bonds with similar maturity and credit risk
to derive the range of comparable yield to maturity as
of date of valuation and the median range has been
adopted.

26.

AR EEERE(E)
AEBRARR(E)
HE_Z——F=ZA=+—HItHF
g HERETIB49412,000/8 B R B
EEE/L\ °

R-ZE—F_A+—H ARFHE
BIZRINIERTRIE - BT RREE
=R 2B A EGeE A R E
HEY-—Z—F= A+MAGEEA
B EAE T —NFE=A+=
H - BRIERZIAGA REREI - TE
ATBRREERBIETIRRBIERER

NREEBREETESARKER  EF
ERRARBEERERE AT
B DA B E B (R TN AT 884 » Rkt - AT R
BEEZBREEREAFEIIRL
EEGAREZERABRNEGEEH
IR ERE D BRIERB AE

RBEEEZEEKSANREEL2ER
RNEBIYW TR E 2 B A BRGER
BEFEBBER AR AGER
EETHE TRREEEBE AT
EEF#%12,703,000/8 TEREZE—
T——F-A=-+—RHILtFEEZER
ER(—ZF——4 : 1,186,000/ 7T) °

B EERBRGEERBIRRET

) WERFIRSEFHEARRE
R IR 2 SNER S BB
B fhEt

i) MHERREREZEFTEEERE
BUTERZRARIZBEERE
B ;

i) BRRERIBARBZEEFAKL
BEERUZ MR EEERRZ
BEAELRARESMER -
UEHRMEERZ A& LSRR
Wi E - s E R RN P AL
E| o
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26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (continued)
The fair value of the convertible loan notes was calculated using
the binomial model. Major parameter adopted in the calculation

of the fair value are summarised below:

26.

TRREERE (&)

AREBERARRR(E)

MEEEREZ AFERA ZER
BAFHE - ERAFERRAZ TR

SHPNT

31 March 2012 31 March 2011

=F-—=F —F——F
=A=t—-B =A=1+—H
Stock price AR {E HK$0.998 5t  HK$1.43% 7T
Exercise price IR HK$0.20787t  HK$0.20/8 7T
Risk free rate R R = 0.215% 1.110%
Discount rate BLIE & 11.444% 10.071%
Dividend yield iR B2 0% 0%
Time to expiration 2 HARS 1.95 years4F 2.95 years4
Stock price volatility N 56.61% 60.55%
2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
The movement of the convertible loan AR EEZHENER 2
notes for the year is set out below: BE)EIT
At 1 Apri R A—H 201,186 -
Recognition of convertible loan ARREESRER
notes on 14 March 2011 (date of —ZE——%=F+WMH
extension) (FEEAE R FER - 200,000
Fair value change charged to the BEEMNKRZ
profit or loss NEEES) 12,703 1,186
Gain on translation of convertible loan  AJIAKEEZE B
notes denominated in a foreign NI BT e K
currency into the functional currency sHEZ Wzs (8,457) -
Exchange adjustment arising on HMEREEE A
translation of functional currency to EYNEEREE Y
presentation currency and charged PE 5 AR B &N
to exchange translation reserve fFENR 8,457 -
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HAZKHE 213,889 201,186
BEEREEARAT - 542012 o
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26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (continued) 26. AIRREERE(E)
The Group and the Company (continued) REBRAAF(E)
2012 2011
—EB-—F —ET—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Difference between carrying amount and  BEEI{E B 2| Ei & 58 >
maturity amount: =8
Convertible loan notes at fair value AMBREEREZ AFE 213,889 201,186
Amount payable on maturity B RS FEAT £ %8 200,000 200,000
13,889 1,186
None of the convertible loan notes had been converted into BE_2——F#k-_F——F=A1
ordinary shares of the Company during the years ended 31 St HIEFETETRREERE
March 2012 and 2011. BEERANNE 2 L@

27.

148

PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION 27. BEfi - B2 RRFERAEE

AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

The Group REE
HK$’000
T
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZE—TFMA—H 1,790
Exchange difference MEH =5 83
At 31 March 2011 N—_E——F=A=+—H 1,873
Exchange difference b 5 =58 78
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 1,951
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27. PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS (continued)
The Group (continued)
Mining activities may result in land subsidence, which could
lead to losses to the residents of the mining areas. Pursuant
to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required to
make compensation payments to the residents for their losses
resulting from land subsidence, or to restore the mining areas
back to certain acceptable conditions.

Under existing legislation, management believes that there are
no probable liabilities that will have a material adverse effect
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
The PRC government, however, has moved and may move
further towards the adoption of more stringent environmental
standards. Environmental liabilities are subject to considerable
uncertainty which affect the Group’s ability to estimate the
ultimate cost of remediation efforts. These uncertainties include:
(i) the exact nature and extent of the contamination at various
sites including, but not limited to, coal mines areas, whether
operating, closed or sold, (i) the extent of required cleanup
efforts, (i) varying costs of alternative remediation strategies,
(iv) changes in environmental remediation requirements, and (v)
the identification of new remediation sites.

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
clean up costs has been determined by management
based on their past experience and best estimate of future
expenditure by discounting the expected expenditures to their
net present value. However, in so far as the effect of the land
and the environment from current mining activities becomes
apparent in future periods, the estimate of the associated costs
may be subject to revision in the future. The amounts provided
in relation to close down, restoration and environmental clean
up costs are reviewed at least annually based upon the facts
and circumstances available at the time and the provisions are
updated accordingly.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

27.

B - EERBERARE
(%)

AEEE ()
GESCDRE B e R ks
B2 EREZEE - RIEERHS
B - AEEARIEEEREX
ZIBRME MR RIEHEE - 86
PRI IR S — T AR -

RIBIRITAN - BEEHEETIERE
T {a] B] BE 3 75 £ (B B A5 AR R sl A 4 3
BHEBERAMSEZEE - A &
B BT B &I A ] fEiE — S BT R
BZIBRREZEE - RREECH RBAER
Bz THERE YAy EAEH
BT RRIRRAEXAZEEST - WE
THEERZSE : N TRE (21
BERRREES - BEASIBEHEZ
BH)ME LR SEZHEREE ;5 (i)
FEERBEIEZRE  (ISBE
fth AT 32 AU B 2 AN ¢ (V) IR 3R
WEREZENR  RVFEESRZR
R e 2 th 2h o

EEECDREBERFBELR  URY
AR 2 &EME - LAFAERFL
MREHBRAFEAMETCHE B2
NIRFBIEKAER - AT - RER
RIERER B R 2 L RIRFFER
ARRBREABGRE - QBB Z G
SHRARARKMELIERT - LA - 18
BRBRBBFEKAGFRZBEERZIS
BERBEERASZEERBRME
B - WARREE H i
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EERIE
The Group REEF
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) NTEEERZEBEEHBEEE,
recognised and movement thereof during the current and prior (BE) U RERAR S BE KBT®
reporting periods. LEHARS > 4 E o
Accelerated
tax  Intangible
depreciation assets Tax losses Total
EHRBHRE EBEEE HIEEE Bz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2010 RZE—TF
mA—H 50 33,364 (50) 33,364
Exchange realignment b AR - 1,542 - 1,542
Credit to consolidated RAEFEZiRE
statement of comprehensive 2 EWEEFRETA
income for the year - (10,837) - (10,837)
At 31 March 2011 R-EB——%F
=A=+—8H 50 24,069 (50) 24,069
Exchange realignment b i FH R - 946 - 946
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEB AT (50) - 50 -
Charge to consolidated RARFEE 24586
statement of comprehensive 2 EUWzER G
income for the year - 8,103 - 8,103
At 31 March 2012 R ——F
=A=+—H - 33,118 - 33,118

150

At 31 March 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$792,000 (2011: HK$60,718,000) available for offset
against future profits. For the year ended 31 March 2012, a
deferred tax asset for tax loss of approximately HK$Nil (2011:
HK$302,000) has been recognised. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of
approximately HK$792,000(2011: HK$60,416,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. Tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

R-EBE——F=A=+—H A&EEH
2 ARE AR IEEE 792,000/ 7T (=
T ——4F : 60,718,000 7t ) A] A 1E
HIEAR KGR - REBE=ZT—=F=
A=+—HILFE  BEEIELEHE
BEZHEBENASEL(ZE——
F : 302,000/ 7T ) ° AR LATER B
B2 FRIE - BAERBHBT ZH
BB #)792,0008 T( — &2 ——4 ¢
60,416,000/ 7T ) EREEF B E EE o
TRIB 18 A] IR Bk -
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28.

29.

F=A=+—HILFE

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group (continued)

At 31 March 2012, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of HK$Nil (2011: HK$17,520,000 for write-down
of inventories). No deferred tax assets has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is payable
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the accumulated taxable profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$41,629,000 (2011: HK$20,376,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

ACQUISITION OF FURTHER INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 March 2011

On 17 August 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of
a further 49% equity interest in Star Fortune, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$50,000,000 satisfied in cash. The
difference of approximately HK$27,143,000 between the
consideration paid and the decrease in the carrying amount of
the non-controlling interests has been recognised directly in
equity.

At 31 March 2011, both the performance guarantee from 4
July 2009 to 3 July 2010 and the profit guarantee have been
met. In addition, as stated in the conditional agreement on
20 May 2010 to acquire the further 49% equity interest in
Star Fortune, the performance guarantee from 4 July 2010
to 3 July 2011 has been waived. Details of which are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 2 June 2010. The
transaction was approved by independent shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting held on 12 August
2010.

MREREXBRAR - F 2012

28.

29.

EAEBIE (&)

REE(E)
RZZE—Z—F=A=+—H ~&H
BB ERERESE (22 ——

& FEME17,520,000/87T) ° B
A A0 L B 2= 5B K A] B8 A VR A0 R E
REBUREF M e A R A R E
ERERRERIEEE
BIEFPBECEMERERTE B2
EN\F—A—HRE  HRTEHBER
B L E P RREL 2 0% B h =R 2 A% B8
IFEE - BB P R B AR R
7 T8 V) FE A 2 B RE & 88 41,629,000
i%ﬁ(::anfi-zosmxmm%ﬁ)
RERE IS MR E L BT R TE A -
Ty R ZN £2 (B RE 420 1) 5 O] B = BB 2 B
M BEEEREZEAT RERTK
BERE[E] o

W BB BB 1 B B S ME AR
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group disposed
of the entire equity interests of ten subsidiaries of the Group

through sale to an independent third party.

The ten subsidiaries disposed were Teamright Holdings
Limited, Artfield Manufacturing Company Limited, Lens Trading
Inc., Collins Development Limited, William Design Limited,
Bessemer International Limited, Artfield Trading (Hong Kong)
Limited, Right Time Group Inc., Wehrle Timepiece International

Limited and Wehrle Uhrenfabrik GmbH.

All these subsidiaries were engaged in investment holding or

were dormant during the year.

The cash flow and the carrying amount of net assets of the

30. HEMBAF

KEE-F-—F=A=t—ALF
B AREBANET - BBTES
7 REARETHHBLT 2
i -

Bk

EHEZ2+HEKBARAR A
Teamright Holdings Limited + Fig & %
£ BR 2 7 - Lens Trading Inc.
Collins Development Limited
William Design Limited * Bessemer
International Limited + #i5 & 5 (&%)
AR A& - Right Time Group Inc.
Wehrle Timepiece International Limited
K Wehrle Uhrenfabrik GmbH °

RER  ZEWNBRAZMRERE
EREBHE RIS o

RHEBHMELHNBARZAER

162

subsidiaries sold at the date of disposal were as follows: EREEFEREIRAENT
Amounts
derecognised
KIERASE
HK$'000
FiET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B NEE =
Trade and other receivables JE L R e EL At P L R 165
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEEE 79
Trade and other payables FERTE TR % B FE TR (2,888)
Tax payable FERFIE ©)
Deferred taxation RIERIA -
Net liabilities disposed of b & A& F5E (2,650)
Exchange reserve b 5 1,509
Less: Ve (1,141)
Consideration of disposals HERE =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMTB A7 (1,141)
Cash consideration received BYERSNRE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of it ERE KRS FEIAR (79
Net cash outflow arising on disposals HEEE 2RSS MLFE (79
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31. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY

31. —EKE A BT

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group deregistered REE—_ZT——EF=A=+—H1It5F
one of its subsidiaries, 1 71#5 & ORYID BR QA (‘177 B AEBEREZIME —FREAR
mhEECRYD)BRAB(EA]) -
Net assets of 2/ on 15 November 2010, the date of EAR_E—ZEF+—A+HBHE
deregistration: APz EEFE :
HK$’'000
FHET
Trade and other receivables JE L SR R EL At LR R 2,116
Bank balances and cash RITHEGTENRRS 3
Trade and other payables FERT & TR R EoAth FE - 5% (2,009)
110
Exchange translation reserve realised on — M A Rl M A B3R 2
deregistration of a subsidiary ER R (518)
Gain on deregistration HSH I GES (408)
Net cash outflow arising on deregistration: BOHEMEE 2R FRE ¢
Cash consideration RERE =
Bank balances and cash disposed

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

P ERITREBREIR S ©)

—HNBRRREEMEEZ RS R

of deregistration of a subsidiary ReFMEIEL REFE ©)
The subsidiary deregistered during the year ended 31 March REEZZT——F=A=+—HIF
2011 had no significant impact on the turnover and results of TR ZMB A RS AREEZE

the Group for that year.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

154

a)

32. BEAIXRS

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated a) BEAEVBRREMITDTIEE
financial statements, the significant related party BN BEREEALZSWT
transactions are as follows:
2012 2011
—E——F =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Star Fortune International ENEHBERERANT
Development Company Limited (M2h=&%R]) (Kita)
(“SFID") (Note a)
— loan interest expenses —ERFBRAX - 255
China Sonangol International Limited ~ ZF Bl A AR A 7
(“CSI") (note b) ([ZeH R ) (M 5ED)
- rental expenses (note ¢) — &Mz (Mike) 480 600
Note a:  SFID was the former holder of the 49% equity interest Mitka © 40 EXXPIEE29FTIREE - 2

of Star Fortune as disclosed in Note 29 above.

Note b: CSl is an intermediate holding company of the FitsED :
Company.
Note c:  Operating lease commitment for future minimum lease FifsEc

payments under non-cancellable operating lease with
CSI was amounted to HK$360,000 (2011: HK$840,000).

NEERRRBENEEL9%
AR Z A A A

ZHRBERASARREZH I E

BAT -

R AR L% R B BR 5T S 2 N A]
B ERE 2 RREN &
1K 78 & 7 I8 & #E 3= 360,000
HBIT(—Z——4F : 840,000
BIT) °
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b)  Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key

32. MEALRS (&)
b) BEBRABWE

FREENHEMBTIEEEENKE

management during the year was as follows: ZEHBMT
2012 2011
—EB-=fF —E——f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Short-term benefits 52 EE R 2,491 2,270
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 A 45 38
2,536 2,308

The remuneration of directors was determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
The Group leases certain of its offices, warehouse and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Lease for
properties are negotiated for a term ranging from one to four
years and rental are fixed.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

EE2HHaFHE 82T
FZBARBERTSBHIEE

)'_\E_'o

. REHERE
AEBEERERA

AEERBLEHELHERETE

FRAE -

EENRETIRS -

%ZEY

EZHOPNF—FEHIFTE A

RBEREERE - AREREAA
B EHE 2 ARENRERER

TEAGER AT HAR 2 AR -

2012 2011

—E-—F =%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FBT

Within one year —FR 794 758
In the second to fifth years, inclusive —EERF(REEERE) 26 360
820 1,118
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34.

156

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 March
1995 (the “Old Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to directors and eligible employees and
expired on 20 March 2005.

As a result of the amendments of Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) on 1 September 2001,
certain terms of the Old Scheme are no longer in compliance
with the Listing Rules and the Company can no longer grant
any further options under the Old Scheme without being
in breach of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company
terminated the Old Scheme and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”), which was approved in the
Company’s annual general meeting on 28 August 2003, for
the purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
participants.

Except that no further options may be granted under the Old
Scheme subsequent to its termination, all the other provisions
of the Old Scheme will remain in force so as to give effect to
the exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Old
Scheme prior to 1 September 2001 and all such options will
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with the provisions
of the Old Scheme.

According to the New Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, any technical, financial, and legal professional
advisors who have contributed to the Group, to subscribe for
shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot
of share options granted.

34.

BRESTE
RRRR—NNAF=A=-+—HB&K
M—EREBESEI(TE5TE8)) - B&Y
RAEERAEREBRIRMER LD
H - EFEER-_TETERF=A_+
B

HREBBMAERZMABERARES L
MR ETRADFI7TER_FF
—ENA-RBELER  SEHEIZ
ETHERTBERE LMRA - BER
RERBEFTEBR L EMBERE
HEERETRA - Bt - ARAR
LF B AT &I 3 BR A — TR B A AT 2
(T#&t8]) - BRRBEZERAE
wemE - HRHMFEERARRE
“EZ=F N AT NBETZRRE
BERS LRIE -

R IEERT SR TR BRI R LB
PerEdh - BEEHEIZ PR A E AL RS
ERAR AR -_FTT—FNA—H
AR EA BIC R E R RITERZA
BB R TITE - MABZEE
P AR R E 5T 8l Z IR B A
KR FATIE ©

REFE - NRAREFAMAER
‘B8 BEARFREEMMB LA
ZEE  UREMEHAKREELE
RRz HEEM - &P DA RAEAI T - B
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. BBIRRERTEI(E)

Options granted should be accepted within 28 days from the
date of grant. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date adoption of the New Scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no remained
outstanding share options granted under both the New
Scheme and Old Scheme (2011: Nil). The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company or any of their associates in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Total number of securities available for issue under the share
option scheme as at 31 March 2012 was 229,612,075 shares
(2011: 229,612,075 shares). The maximum number of shares
to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any other
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may be
exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option. The exercise price is determined
by the directors and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (i)
the nominal value of the share.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The New Scheme will remain effective until it is terminated by

resolution in a general meeting at any time.

During the year ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011, no
option was granted under the New Schemes to directors of

and consultants of the Group.

There was no outstanding share option as at 1 April 2010, 31

March 2011 and 31 March 2012.

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employee’s basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed

into the MPF Scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees, are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
year to which they are related and represented the amount of
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to this scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$524,000 (2011:
HK$627,000) represents contributions payable to the schemes

by the Group in respect of the current financial year.
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36. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Department of
Land and Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the
“Xinjiang Land Department”) informed the Group that pursuant
to the instructions of the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC, the Xinjiang Land Department has
to plan for a management restructuring of different coal mines
in the Xiheishan Mining Area (the “Management Restructuring
Plan”), where the Group’s Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine (the
“Kaiyuan Mine”) and Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine situate (the “Zexu
Mine”).

On 14 March 2012, a restructuring proposal (the “Restructuring
Proposal”) was issued by the People’s Government of Mulei
Kazak Autonomous County, where the Group’s Kaiyuan
Mine is located, to the Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry
of Changji Prefecture (the “Changji Administrative Bureau”).
According to the Restructuring Proposal, which is part of
the Management Restructuring Plan, the mining area of the
Kaiyuan Mine, where the Group is now conducting mining
activities, is proposed to be increased from 1.158 square
kilometers to 4.12 square kilometers, with the estimated
additional coal resources of approximately 131.18 million
tonnes. In the Restructuring Proposal, it is also stated that the
production capacity of the Kaiyuan Mine will increase from 0.9
million tonnes per year to 3 million tonnes per year.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2012 on 13 June
2012, Changji Administrative Bureau issued a letter to
the Group informing that the increase of mining area was
endorsed by the bureau. The letter also stated that the
Group’s exploration right to Zexu Mine will be withdrawn as
the condition of the Zexu Mine does not fulfill the requirement
under the Management Restructuring Plan. The above
proposals related to Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine are currently
submitted to the People’s Government of Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region for final approval.

The directors of the Company is of the view that as the above
proposals is still subjected to final approval of the People’s
Government of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, it is
uncertain whether the above changes will be materialised. As of
the reporting date, the carrying amount of the exploration right
of Zexu Mine was amounted to approximately HK$48,065,000.
The Group will engage an independent qualified valuer to
value the additional coal resources when the final approval is
obtained. Subject to the professional valuation, the directors
are of the view that the value of the additional coal resources is
expected to exceed the value of the aforesaid exploration right.
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37.

38.

160

F=ZA=+—HILFE

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the correction of prior year errors, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to current
year’s presentation and to provide comparative amounts in
respect of items disclosed. Further details of these corrections
are disclosed in note 4.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and Interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2012 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle?
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets!
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 19 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(FRIC) - Int 20

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Incomes
Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets?
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?
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38.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW  38.

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of financial
assets. These amendments are intended to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when a financial asset is
transferred but the transferor retains some level of continuing
exposure in the asset. The amendments also require
disclosures where transfers of financial assets are not evenly
distributed throughout the period.

The directors anticipate that the application of the amendments
to HKFRS 7 will affect the Group’s disclosures regarding
transfers of financial assets in the future.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offsetting requirements. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation
and settlement”. The amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures
— Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities require
entities to disclose information about rights of offset and
related arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements)
for financial instruments under an enforceable master netting
agreement or similar arrangement. The amended offsetting
disclosures are required for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within those
annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the
amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.
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38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 (continued)
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

o The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a
financial liability (designated as at fair value through profit
or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

162

38. RBZE=-ZE——H%=A=+—

HIEFECEMAEMRERZ
B8] - Al B KRR ZEE
T (|

R-ZENFROZBEUHREE
AIEHIIANEHEREES BRE
ZHRE - R-B—BEET2EHS
MRS ENBOFRBEHSMAREY
DEERET B AR LR ZIRTE

ARV RELENFEIR T ERTEM
N

s BAEMBHMEEFRMAE
BB G ERES M TA
MR R EBIEANZ AT R
TREENHERIREHEKRAI D
FERE - TERRBERA R
e B URBRARE R
BEHNBEREBZARENAX
RS RAREEREHE ZER
RE  —REBEREFTHR2#
AT E - FREEMERRE
REARERER G R ZA
FEFE - I RIEFBHH

EARERNFEOS - BREA(ELHT
AEE 2 EE - REMEERA
FEINEIFEEEZRARE
MAHEERES - HERS
WA —RRIN B R TR ©

o FAVWBHMEEREORHTE
BEZDBENTEBKRZREAF
BT ARBEE MR AHEIEL
ERaSREZEMABEZATE
BH2| MAEBATEZZH
ERRNZAEABZEERRE
MEL - LERRBEEBVHR
EERNFN - FHEREAFE
SRR EEmANEEZ SRAE
ZRFHEEBHSR(BANZE
BEZEERRES)NEME
ERA RS - ERE M2 ER
AERZBBEERRESTZE
AIRESESIBA B N 2 S5t EE
RSN - BERERABEEER
BZAHERSHERIWBEHRD
BERE - BT BEEHER
SFEIPRAME WA TEFIRILAE
BamNRERAEATFES
B2 2N B RFIR -

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited - Annual Report 2012



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 7 SR R B ot ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 2 —E——F=/F=+—HILtFE

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 (continued)
In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK (SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on
the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements.
In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets
and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the
same time.
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38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 (continued)
The directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The application
of these five standards may have significant impact on
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
The application of HKFRS 10 may result in the Group no
longer consolidating some of its investees, and consolidating
investees that were not previously consolidated (e.g. the
Group’s investment in associates may become the Group’s
subsidiaries based on the new definition of control and the
related guidance in HKFRS 10). In addition, the application
of HKFRS 11 may result in changes in the accounting of the
Group’s jointly controlled entities that are currently accounted
for using proportionate consolidation. Under HKFRS 11, those
jointly controlled entities will be classified as a joint operation
or joint venture, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the joint arrangement. However, the directors
have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of
the application of these Standards and hence have not yet
quantified the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B 765 3 e B o ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B2 - ——F=/F=+—HILtFE

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 (continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 April 2013 and that the application of the new
Standard may affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when
the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 Investment Property are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,
unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 H{E —E— 4= =+—H L FE

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2012 (continued)
The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for
defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most
significant change relates to the accounting for changes in
defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments
require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations
and in the fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence
eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under the previous
version of HKAS 19. The amendments require all actuarial
gains and losses to be recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income in order for the net pension asset or
liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 applies to waste removal costs that are
incurred in surface mining activity during the production
phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”). Under the
Interpretation, the costs from this waste removal activity
(“stripping”) which provide improved access to ore is
recognised as a non-current asset (“stripping activity asset”)
when certain criteria are met, whereas the costs of normal
ongoing operational stripping activities are accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories. The stripping activity
asset is accounted for as an addition to, or as an enhancement
of, an existing asset and classified as tangible or intangible
according to the nature of the existing asset of which it forms
part.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with transitional provisions. The directors
anticipate that the Interpretation will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 April 2013.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMGIHE

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
HEZT——F=A=1+—HIEFE (UFTHETRENMN)

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and ~ANEBERBEREVHREED AHLEE - &
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is &= N B & A M IFEREREH AT -
set out below.
RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HL%FE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
(restated)
—EB--f % —_T-TF —TTNE —TTN\F
TER THT THT THT THT
(fe=51)
TURNOVER EEE 190,974 104,428 96,090 23,105 137,164
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS & %%/ (B518) 26,966 (18,413) (7,651)  (14,822)  (21,631)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB R Az M 1,141 - - 3 669
Net gain on deregistration of Lo =YNGIE: E=Eali
subsidiaries g e - 408 - 2,618 215
Finance costs BERA = (19,845)  (18,756) (16,640 (974)
Change in fair value of convertible ARREEREL
loan notes NFEZE (12,703) (1,186) - - -
Reversal of/(impairment loss) on B EE D,/
intangible asset (REER) 39,733 (41,59 - - -
Impairment loss on goodwil HE I mEEE - (15,085) (5,400) - -
Profit/(loss) before tax BERDEA, (E518) 55,137 (95,696)  (31,807)  (28,841)  (21,721)
Income tax credit (expense) Fri5fiike (M) (11,420) 10,730 (2,163) 7 (624)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/(E8) 43,117 (84,966) (33,970) (28,764) (22,245)
Attributable to: FE(S
Owners of the Company ARREBA 43717  (84,105)  (31,789)  (28,764)  (22,245)
Non-controliing interests IR - (861) 2,181) - -
43717  (84966)  (33.970)  (28764)  (22,245)
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)
FFEMBHE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZ——-F=A=1+—RLFE UTAETABEAMN)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING &ER & EURIFERERS

—

At 31 March
R=ZB=+—H
2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —T-FTF —TTHNEF —FETNE

TAT TAT TAT TAT

Total assets BEE 390,997 543,233 385977 403,730
Total liabilities Y= (259,316) (283,832  (172,509)  (169,569)
Non-controling interests EEalive 5y = (78,004) = =
Net assets BEFE 131,681 181,397 213,468 234,161
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